Agenda

City Council

Council Chambers, City Hall
6911 No. 3 Road

Monday, June 24, 2019

7:00 p.m.
Pg. # ITEM
MINUTES
1. Motion to:

CNCL-13 (1) adopt the minutes of the Regular Council meeting held on June 10,

2019; and
CNCL-26 (2)  receive for information the Metro Vancouver ‘Board in Brief’ dated

May 24, 20109.

AGENDA ADDITIONS & DELETIONS

PRESENTATION

Peter Russell, Senior Manager, Sustainability and District Energy to introduce
the Grade 4/5 Class from Howard Debeck Elementary School, the winners of
Richmond Cool It! (formerly the Climate Change Showdown.)

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

2. Motion to resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on
agenda items.

CNCL -1
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Council Agenda — Monday, June 24, 2019

Pg. #

ITEM

Delegations from the floor on Agenda items.

PLEASE NOTE THAT FOR LEGAL REASONS, DELEGATIONS ARE
NOT PERMITTED ON ZONING OR OCP AMENDMENT BYLAWS
WHICH ARE TO BE ADOPTED OR ON DEVELOPMENT
PERMITS/DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMITS - ITEM NO. 33.

Motion to rise and report.

RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE ACTION

CONSENT AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT ITEMS APPEARING ON THE CONSENT
AGENDA WHICH PRESENT A CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR
COUNCIL MEMBERS MUST BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT
AGENDA AND CONSIDERED SEPARATELY.

CONSENT AGENDA HIGHLIGHTS

=  Receipt of Committee minutes

= 2018 Annual Report and 2018 Annual Report — Highlights
=  Community Bylaws Monthly Activity Report - April 2019
=  Lobbyist Registration

= Recovering Costs for Local Climate Change Impacts

=  Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, Amendment Bylaw No. 10029 -
4280 No.3 Road Unit 120

= UBCM Resolution on Legislative Reform of Beneficial Ownership of
Corporations and Land

= UBCM Cannabis Costs Survey
= UBCM Resolution regarding Restoring Provincial Support for Libraries

= UBCM Resolutions - Provincial Single-Use Item Strategy and
Compostable Single-Use Items

= Pride Week 2019 Activities and Proposed Permanent Rainbow
Crosswalk

= Council Term Goals 2018-2022
»  Draft Cultural Harmony Plan 2019-2029
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Council Agenda — Monday, June 24, 2019

Consent
Agenda
Item

Pg. #

CNCL-37

CNCL-44

ITEM

= Land use applications for first reading (to be further considered at the
Public Hearing on July 15, 2019):

23400, 23440, 23460 and 23500 Gates Avenue and a Portion of
Gates Avenue — to Amend Schedule 2.14 of Official Community
Bylaw 9000 (Hamilton Area Plan), Create the “Town Housing -
Hamilton (ZT86)” Zone, and Rezone from RS1/F to ZT86 and SI
(Fougere Architecture Inc. — applicant)

7571 Bridge Street — Rezone from RS1/F to ZS14 (Pakland
Developments Ltd. — applicant)

Portions of 12700 and 12800 Rice Mill Road, 12280 and 12300 No.
5 Road — Rezone from AGL1 and IL to a Site Specific Zone (SNC
Lavalin Inc. — applicant)

9020 Glenallan Gate, 9460, 9480 & 9500 Garden City Road —
Rezone from RS1/E to RTL4 (Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. —
applicant)

9340 General Currie Road — Rezone from RS1/F to ZT45 (1116559
B.C. LTD. — applicant)

=  Multi-Passenger Bicycle Business Proposal
= Review of Collision Prone Intersections

= City Centre District Energy Utility Bylaw No. 9895, Amendment Bylaw
No. 10012

= 2018 Annual Water Quality Report
=  Flood Protection Management Strategy 2019 - Final Report

Motion to adopt Items No. 6 through No. 28 by general consent.

COMMITTEE MINUTES

That the minutes of:

1)
@)

the Special General Purposes Committee meeting held on June 10,
2019; and

the Community Safety Committee meeting held on June 11, 2019;

be received for information.
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Council Agenda — Monday, June 24, 2019

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

CNCL-50

CNCL-149

CNCL-155

ITEM

10.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT AND 2018 ANNUAL REPORT -

HIGHLIGHTS
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 6169653)

See Page CNCL-50 for full report

FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

That the reports titled, “2018 Annual Report™ and the “2018 Annual Report
— Highlights” be approved.

COMMUNITY BYLAWS MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT - APRIL

2019
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-01) (REDMS No. 6181948)

See Page CNCL-149 for full report

COMMUNITY SAFETY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

(1) That bylaw enforcement staff move from complaint based to proactive
investigations on all bylaw issues; and

(2) That the staff report titled “Community Bylaws Monthly Activity
Report — April 20197, dated May 8, 2019, from the General Manager,
Community Safety, be received for information.

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No.)

Recommendations will be considered at the Open General Purposes
Committee meeting.

RECOVERING COSTS FOR LOCAL CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACTS
(File Ref. No. 10-6125-07-02) (REDMS No. 6190255 v. 9; 6192766; 6192881)

See Page CNCL-155 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open General Purposes
Committee meeting.
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Council Agenda — Monday, June 24, 2019

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Pg. #

CNCL-163

CNCL-168

CNCL-173

CNCL-197

CNCL-208

ITEM

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

BUSINESS REGULATION BYLAW NO. 7538, AMENDMENT

BYLAW NO. 10029 - 4280 NO.3 ROAD UNIT 120
(File Ref. No. 12-8275-01) (REDMS No. 6164355; 6165641)

See Page CNCL-163 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open General Purposes
Committee meeting.

UBCM RESOLUTION ON LEGISLATIVE REFORM OF

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF CORPORATIONS AND LAND
(File Ref. No. 09-5350-01) (REDMS No. 6148919 v. 5)

See Page CNCL-168 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open General Purposes
Committee meeting.

UBCM CANNABIS COSTS SURVEY
(File Ref. No. 09-5000-01) (REDMS No. 6194371 v. 4)

See Page CNCL-173 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open General Purposes
Committee meeting.

UBCM RESOLUTION REGARDING RESTORING PROVINCIAL

SUPPORT FOR LIBRARIES
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 6205939 v. 2)

See Page CNCL-197 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open General Purposes
Committee meeting.

UBCM RESOLUTIONS - PROVINCIAL SINGLE-USE ITEM

STRATEGY AND COMPOSTABLE SINGLE-USE ITEMS
(File Ref. No. 10-6370-01) (REDMS No. 6211321)

See Page CNCL-208 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open General Purposes
Committee meeting.
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Council Agenda — Monday, June 24, 2019

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Pg. #

CNCL-214

CNCL-218

CNCL-235

CNCL-283

ITEM

16.

17.

18.

19.

PRIDE WEEK 2019 ACTIVITIES AND PROPOSED PERMANENT

RAINBOW CROSSWALK
(File Ref. No. 07-3000-01) (REDMS No. 6210999 v. 4)

See Page CNCL-214 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open General Purposes
Committee meeting.

COUNCIL TERM GOALS 2018-2022
(File Ref. No. 01-0105-07-01) (REDMS No. 6174635 v. 7)

See Page CNCL-218 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open General Purposes
Committee meeting.

DRAFT CULTURAL HARMONY PLAN 2019-2029
(File Ref. No. 07-3300-01) (REDMS No. 6192246 v. 7)

See Page CNCL-235 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Planning Committee
meeting.

APPLICATION BY FOUGERE ARCHITECTURE INC. TO AMEND
SCHEDULE 2.14 OF OFFICIAL COMMUNITY BYLAW 9000
(HAMILTON AREA PLAN), CREATE THE “TOWN HOUSING -
HAMILTON (ZT86)” ZONE, AND REZONE THE SITE AT 23400,
23440, 23460 AND 23500 GATES AVENUE AND A PORTION OF
GATES AVENUE FROM “SINGLE DETACHED (RS1/F)” TO “TOWN
HOUSING (ZT86) - HAMILTON” AND “SCHOOL &

INSTITUTIONAL USE (SI)”
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-009932/010011; RZ 17-766714) (REDMS No. 6195595 v. 2)

See Page CNCL-283 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Planning Committee
meeting.
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Council Agenda — Monday, June 24, 2019

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Pg. #

CNCL-352

CNCL-376

CNCL-442

CNCL-477

ITEM

20.

21.

22.

23.

APPLICATION BY PAKLAND DEVELOPMENTS LTD. FOR
REZONING AT 7571 BRIDGE STREET FROM THE “SINGLE
DETACHED (RS1/F)” ZONE TO THE “SINGLE DETACHED (ZS14) -

SOUTH MCLENNAN (CITY CENTRE)” ZONE
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-009939; RZ 18-802621) (REDMS No. 5953724)

See Page CNCL-352 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Planning Committee
meeting.

APPLICATION BY SNC LAVALIN INC. FOR REZONING OF
PORTIONS OF 12700 AND 12800 RICE MILL ROAD, 12280 AND
12300 NO. 5 ROAD FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG1l) AND LIGHT

INDUSTRIAL (IL) TO A SITE SPECIFIC ZONE
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-009940; RZ 18-824565) (REDMS No. 5977294 v. 11)

See Page CNCL-376 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Planning Committee
meeting.

APPLICATION BY MATTHEW CHENG ARCHITECT INC. FOR
REZONING AT 9020 GLENALLAN GATE, 9460, 9480 & 9500
GARDEN CITY ROAD FROM SINGLE DETACHED (RS1/E) TO

LOW DENSITY TOWNHOUSES (RTL4)
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-010047; RZ 18-829032) (REDMS No. 6162813)

See Page CNCL-442 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Planning Committee
meeting.

APPLICATION BY 1116559 B.C. LTD. FOR REZONING AT 9340
GENERAL CURRIE ROAD FROM SINGLE DETACHED (RS1/F) TO
TOWN HOUSING (ZT45) - GILBERT ROAD, ACHESON - BENNETT
SUB-AREA, ST. ALBANS SUB-AREA, SOUTH MCLENNAN (CITY

CENTRE)
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-010048; RZ 17-790958) (REDMS No. 6160197)

See Page CNCL-477 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Planning Committee
meeting.
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Council Agenda — Monday, June 24, 2019

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Pg. #

CNCL-524

CNCL-530

CNCL-587

CNCL-597

CNCL-696

ITEM

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

MULTI-PASSENGER BICYCLE BUSINESS PROPOSAL
(File Ref. No. 12-8275-06) (REDMS No. 6182789)

See Page CNCL-524 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Public Works and
Transportation Committee meeting.

REVIEW OF COLLISION PRONE INTERSECTIONS
(File Ref. No. 10-6450-09-01) (REDMS No. 6188336 v. 6)

See Page CNCL-530 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Public Works and
Transportation Committee meeting.

CITY CENTRE DISTRICT ENERGY UTILITY BYLAW NO. 9895,

AMENDMENT BYLAW NO. 10012
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-01012) (REDMS No. 6147348 v. 9; 6147412)

See Page CNCL-587 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Public Works and
Transportation Committee meeting.

2018 ANNUAL WATER QUALITY REPORT
(File Ref. No. 10-6000-00) (REDMS No. 6183337)

See Page CNCL-597 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Public Works and
Transportation Committee meeting.

FLOOD PROTECTION MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2019 - FINAL

REPORT
(File Ref. No. 10-6060-04-01) (REDMS No. 6161241 v. 7)

See Page CNCL-696 for full report

Recommendations will be considered at the Open Public Works and
Transportation Committee meeting.

Fkhhhhkhkhkkkhkhkhkhkihhikhhkhkhkhik

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REMOVED FROM THE
CONSENT AGENDA

*hkkkkhkhkkkikkhkkkhkhkkkikhkkhkikkiikk
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Council Agenda — Monday, June 24, 2019

CNCL-755

ITEM

29.

NON-CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair

PROPOSED UBCM RESOLUTION - STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE

UPDATES
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No.)

See Page CNCL-755 for full report

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
Opposed: Mayor Brodie and Clirs. Loo, McNulty, and McPhail

To forward the following resolution for consideration at UBCM and to send
copies to the Local Governments of BC for their favourable considerations
prior to the 2019 UBCM meeting. Additional copy to be sent to the Minister
of Municipal Affairs.

Statement of Disclosure Updates

Whereas professional regulatory bodies, such as CPABC, BC
Law Society, APEGBC, and others, have conflict of interest and
ethics rules for their members, under which appearance of
conflict of interest is disallowed;

Whereas the public expects elected representatives to act to a
professional standard of conduct;

And whereas the scope of decisions and responsibilities of an
elected representative can be broad and encompass a variety of
issues;

So be it resolved that the Statement of Disclosure for municipal
nominees and elected representatives be updated to additionally
include a spouse’s assets; a spouse’s liabilities; and real
property, other than their primary residence, held singly or
jointly by a spouse, child, brother, sister, mother or father, to the
best knowledge of the candidate. Further, within 60 days of
being sworn in, to file a confidential financial disclosure
statement to a non-partisan Municipal Conflict of Interest
Commissioner.

CNCL -9



Council Agenda — Monday, June 24, 2019

Pg. #

CNCL-755

CNCL-759

ITEM

30.

31.

PROPOSED UBCM RESOLUTION - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

COMPLAINT MECHANISM
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No.)

See Page CNCL-755 for full report

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
Opposed: Mayor Brodie and Cllr. McNulty

To forward the following resolution for consideration at UBCM and to send
copies to the Local Governments of BC for their favourable considerations
prior to the 2019 UBCM meeting. Additional copy to be sent to the Minister
of Municipal Affairs.

Conflict of Interest Complaint Mechanism

Whereas professional regulatory bodies, such as CPABC, BC
Law Society, APEGBC, and others, have conflict of interest and
ethics rules for their members and enforce them through a
complaints process;

Whereas the public expects elected representatives to be held to
a professional standard of conduct;

And whereas the only remedy for a citizen complaint of a
municipal elected person’s conflict of interest is through a
judgement of the Supreme Court of British Columbia;

So be it resolved that the Province of British Columbia consider
a mechanism including to resolve and remedy conflict of
interest complaints through a non-partisan Municipal Conflict
of Interest Commissioner or expansion of the scope of powers of
the BC Ombudsperson.

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION

COUNCIL REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES FOR 2018
(File Ref. No.: 03-1200-03) (REDMS No. 6206322)

See Page CNCL-759 for full report

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
That the 2018 Council Remuneration and Expenses be approved.

CNCL - 10
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Pg. #

CNCL-761

CNCL-841

CNCL-843

CNCL-846
CNCL-916

ITEM

32.

33.

2018 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(File Ref. No.: 03-1200-03) (REDMS No. 6194865)

See Page CNCL-761 for full report

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

That the 2018 Statement of Financial Information be approved.

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS AND EVENTS

NEW BUSINESS

BYLAWS FOR ADOPTION

Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 9000 and 7100, Amendment
Bylaw No. 9813

(4360 Garry Street, RZ 16-737146)

Opposed at 1% Reading — None.

Opposed at 2"%/3" Readings — ClIr. Day.

Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 9814
(4360 Gary Street, RZ 16-737146)

Opposed at 1% Reading — None.

Opposed at 2"/3" Readings — ClIr. Day.

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PANEL

RECOMMENDATION

See DPP Plan Package (distributed separately) for full hardcopy plans

(1) That the minutes of the Development Permit Panel meetings held on
May 15, 2019 and May 29, 2019 and the Chair’s report for the
Development Permit Panel meetings held on September 12, 2018 be
received for information; and

CNCL -11
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Pg. # ITEM

CNCL-1034 (2) That the recommendation of the Panel to authorize the issuance of a
Development Permit (DP 17-793478) for the property at 4360 Garry
Street be endorsed, and the Permit so issued.

ADJOURNMENT

CNCL - 12



Place:

Present:

Call to Order:
RESNO. ITEM
R19/10-1 1.

6209765

Minutes

Regular Council

Monday, June 10, 2019

Council Chambers
Richmond City Hall

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie
Councillor Chak Au
Councillor Carol Day
Councillor Kelly Greene
Councillor Alexa Loo
Councillor Bill McNulty
Councillor Linda McPhail
Councillor Harold Steves
Councillor Michael Wolfe

Acting Corporate Officer — Claudia Jesson

Mayor Brodie called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded
That the minutes of the Regular Council meeting held on May 27, 2019, be
adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

CNCL -13



City of
Richmond Minutes

Regular Council
Monday, June 10, 2019

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

R19/10-2 2. It was moved and seconded
That Council resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on
agenda items (7:01 p.m.).

CARRIED

3. Delegations from the floor on Agenda items
Item No. 9 — Affordable Housing Strategy (2017-2027) — 2018 Update

De Whalen, Richmond resident, read from her submission (attached to and
forming part of these minutes as Schedule 1), and expressed her concern on
the limited availability of housing for low income families and potential
affordable housing units lost to demolitions.

Item No. 9 — Affordable Housing Strategy (2017-2027) — 2018 Update

Niti Sharma, Richmond resident, read from her submission (attached to and
forming part of these minutes as Schedule 2) and expressed her concern
regarding the pace of affordable housing development and mechanisms to
ensure that developed units dedicated for affordable housing are occupied.
Also, she expressed concern with regard to illegal suites in the city and
encouraged the City to use its surplus to develop affordable housing.

R19/10-3 4. It was moved and seconded
That Committee rise and report (7:10 p.m.).

CARRIED

CONSENT AGENDA

R19/10-4 5. It was moved and seconded
That Items No. 6 through No. 10 and Item No. 13 be adopted by general

consent.
CARRIED
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Minutes

Regular Council
Monday, June 10, 2019

6. COMMITTEE MINUTES

That the minutes of:

(I) the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee meeting held
on May 28, 2019;

(2)  the General Purposes Committee meeting held on June 3, 2019; and
(3)  the Planning Committee meeting held on June 4, 2019;

be received for information.
ADOPTED ON CONSENT

7. PROPOSED TIDALLY INFLUENCED TERRA NOVA SLOUGH

UPDATE
(File Ref. No. 06-2345-20-TNOV4) (REDMS No. 6160886 v. 10; 5621988; 6162646; 6162647;
6162648; 6162649; 6162651; 6162669)

(1) That Option 2: Create, without the necessity of diking around the
slough, a Tidally Influenced Terra Nova Slough, as outlined in the
staff report titled “Proposed Tidally Influenced Terra Nova Slough
Update” dated April 5, 2019 for the Director, Parks Services, be
endorsed; and

(2) That staff be directed to explore (i) design options for the tidally
influenced Terra Nova slough, including the original plan, and (ii)
additional funding sources.

ADOPTED ON CONSENT

8. 2019 CHILD CARE GRANTS - SECOND INTAKE
(File Ref. No. 03-0185-01) (REDMS No. 6178419 v. 4; 6178430; 5364413; 5955401; 6010359
6184297)

That the Child Care Capital Grants, as outlined in the staff report titled
“2019 Child Care Grants — Second Intake” dated May 7, 2019 from the
Manager, Community Social Development, be awarded for the
recommended amounts and cheques be disbursed for a total of $25,720.

ADOPTED ON CONSENT
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Minutes

Regular Council
Monday, June 10, 2019

9.  AFFORDABLE HOUSING STRATEGY (2017-2027) — 2018 UPDATE
(File Ref. No. 01-0095-20-5006) (REDMS No. 6090737 v. 4; 6189949; 6195571)

That the Affordable Housing Strategy (2017-2027) — 2018 Update be
distributed to key stakeholders and posted on the City website.

ADOPTED ON CONSENT

10. BUILDING OUR SOCIAL FUTURE - A SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY FOR RICHMOND (2013-2022): PROGRESS REPORT

FOR 2017 AND 2018
(File Ref. No. 07-3375-01) (REDMS No. 5805953 v. 16; 5809590: 6194666)

That the Building Our Social Future — A Social Development Strategy for
Richmond (2013-2022): Progress Report for 2017 and 2018 be distributed
to key stakeholders and posted on the City website.

ADOPTED ON CONSENT

11. APPLICATION BY MATTHEW CHENG ARCHITECT INC. FOR
REZONING AT 7391 MOFFATT ROAD FROM THE “MEDIUM
DENSITY LOW RISE APARTMENTS (RAM1)” ZONE TO THE

“HIGH DENSITY TOWNHOUSES (RTH1)” ZONE
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-009894; RZ 17-777664) (REDMS No. 6162857; 5881819)

Please see Page 5 for action on this Item.

12. APPLICATION BY RAMAN KOONER FOR REZONING AT
10200/10220 RAILWAY AVENUE FROM THE “TWO-UNIT
DWELLINGS (RD1)” ZONE TO THE “COACH HOUSES (RCH1)”

ZONE
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-010035; RZ 17-784927) (REDMS No. 5997730; 6182914; 280220;
6188588; 5997352)

Please see Page 6 for action on this Item.
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s4# Richmond Minutes

Regular Council
Monday, June 10, 2019

13.  FARMING FIRST: PROPOSED UPDATE TO RICHMOND’S 2003

AGRICULTURAL VIABILITY STRATEGY (AVS)
(File Ref. No. 08-4050-10) (REDMS No. 6061053 v. 5; 919127; 5949782)

That staff be directed to conduct public consultation regarding the update to
the Agricultural Viability Strategy, and report back to Planning Committee;
and

ADOPTED ON CONSENT

As a result of discussion on signage enforcement, staff were directed to
consider agricultural signage requirements as part of the Agricultural Viability
Strategy public consultation in relation to sign placement, size, duration, fees,
when reporting back.

s s s sk ok ok ok sk sk skeof sk ok ok ok ke ok ok sk sk ok stk sk ook skok

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REMOVED FROM THE
CONSENT AGENDA

st o s ok s ok o sk ok sk ok ok sk ok s ok ok sk ok ok s sk ok skt sk ok ok ok

11. APPLICATION BY MATTHEW CHENG ARCHITECT INC. FOR
REZONING AT 7391 MOFFATT ROAD FROM THE ‘“MEDIUM
DENSITY LOW RISE APARTMENTS (RAM1)” ZONE TO THE

“HIGH DENSITY TOWNHOUSES (RTH1)” ZONE
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-009894; RZ 17-777664) (REDMS No. 6162857; 5881819)

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) disclosure of the statutory right-of-way
on-title to the property owners of the adjacent development, (ii) the
application’s proposed tree retention plan, (iii) the application’s proposed
affordable housing contribution, and (iv) the proposed development’s
potential overlook onto the adjacent property.

R19/10-5 It was moved and seconded
(1)  That Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 9894, for the
rezoning of 7391 Moffatt Road from the “Medium Density Low Rise
Apartments (RAMI1)” zone to the “High Density Townhouses
(RTH1)” zone, be introduced and given First Reading; and
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R19/10-6

. City of
ae# Richmond

Regular Council
Monday, June 10, 2019

(2) That a letter be sent to guiding groups of property management
companies, stratas, notaries, lawyers, real estate professionals and
other appropriate professional bodies to inform them of the on-going
issue of buyers reporting a lack of property information and request
that measures be taken to improve disclosure of property information
to prospective buyers.

CARRIED
Opposed: Cllrs. Au
Greene

Wolfe

12. APPLICATION BY RAMAN KOONER FOR REZONING AT

10200/10220 RAILWAY AVENUE FROM THE “TWO-UNIT

DWELLINGS (RD1)” ZONE TO THE “COACH HOUSES (RCH1)”

ZONE

(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-010035; RZ 17-784927) (REDMS No. 5997730; 6182914; 280220;

6188588; 5997352)

It was moved and seconded

(I) That the following recommendation be forwarded to a Public
Hearing:

(a) That Single-Family Lot Size Policy 5420 for the area generally
bounded by Steveston Highway, Railway Avenue, Williams
Road and the rear property lines of the properties located along
No. 2 Road, in a portion of Section 36 Block 4 North Range 7
West, be amended as shown in the proposed draft Single-Family
Lot Size Policy 5420 (Attachment 5); and

(2) That Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 10035, for
the rezoning of 10200/10220 Railway Avenue from the “Two-Unit
Dwellings (RD1)” zone to the “Coach Houses (RCHI)” zone, be
introduced and given First Reading.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion ensued with regard to
the history of the Railway Avenue corridor and the potential to increase
density along a portion of Railway Avenue.

CNCL -18
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Minutes

Regular Council
Monday, June 10, 2019

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that the proposed amendment
to the Lot Size Policy will exclude 46 properties fronting Railway Avenue
and two properties fronting Williams Road and would enable those lots to
apply for a rezoning to permit redevelopment, in keeping with the Arterial
Road Land Use Policy. Staff were then directed that should the application
proceed, a memorandum on the proposed Lot Size Policy amendment be
provided to Council prior to the Public Hearing.

The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRIED with
Cllrs. Greene, Steves and Wolfe opposed.

NON-CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

PUBLIC DELEGATIONS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

R19/10-7  14. It was moved and seconded
That Council resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on
non-agenda items (8:15 p.m.).

CARRIED

(1)  With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation (copy on-file, City Clerk’s
Office), Annie Lai, along with Tracy Gwang, Joanne Yuan, Kyla
Latumahina, Sargun Khurana, and Dennis Li, Richmond residents,
reviewed a proposal for the implementation of a Youth City Council
(YCC), highlighting that a such a group would support youth
engagement and provide opportunities to grow youth leadership in the
community.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) YCC’s potential structure and
budget, (ii) group membership, and (ii1) preserving the group for future
students.

As a result of the discussion, the following referral motion was
introduced:
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R19/10-8 It was moved and seconded
That staff analyse the proposed implementation of a Richmond Youth
Council and provide recommendations.

CARRIED

(2) Kim Jensen and David Price, representing the Richmond Tennis Club,
read from their submission (copy on-file, City Clerk’s Office), and
spoke on a proposal to upgrade current facilities, including upgrades to
wheelchair access.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) opportunities to acquire federal
provincial and accessibility grants, (ii) the Richmond Tennis Club
membership, (iii) the proposed timeline to develop the facility, and
(iv) potential use of the facility by other community groups.

As a result of the discussion, the following referral was introduced:

R19/10-9 It was moved and seconded
That the proposal and supporting documents from the Richmond
Tennis Club be referred to staff to be considered with the City’s Long

Term Facility Plan.
CARRIED
R19/10-10 15. It was moved and seconded
That Committee rise and report (8:51 p.m.).
CARRIED

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mayor Brodie announced that George A. (Tony) Davies was appointed to the
Aquatic Services Board for a 19- month term to expire December 31, 2020.

Mayor Brodie announced that on June 1, 2019, the City entered into an
agreement with the Richmond Nature Park Society for the delivery of
community programs and events in connection with the Richmond Nature
Park that encourage and promote public awareness of and interest in the study
of nature, environmental sustainability and outdoor education.
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BYLAWS FOR ADOPTION

R19/10-11 It was moved and seconded
That the following bylaws be adopted:

Parking (Off-Street) Regulation Bylaw No. 7403, Amendment Bylaw No.
10002

Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 9646

In reply to queries from Committee, staff advised that the applicant has met
all conditions in relation to Richmond Official Community Plan Bylaw 7100,
Amendment Bylaw No. 9062 and Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment
Bylaw No. 9063.

R19/10-12 It was moved and seconded
That Richmond Official Community Plan Bylaw 7100, Amendment Bylaw
No. 9062 be adopted.

CARRIED
Opposed: Cllrs. Day
Greene

Steves

Wolfe

R19/10-13 It was moved and seconded
That Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 9063 be
adopted.

CARRIED
Opposed: Cllrs. Day
Greene

Steves
Wolfe
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ADJOURNMENT

R19/10-14 It was moved and seconded
That the meeting adjourn (9:06 p.m.).

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the Regular meeting of the
Council of the City of Richmond held on
Monday, June 10, 2019.

Mayor (Malcolm D. Brodie) Acting Corporate Officer (Claudia Jesson)
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June 10, 2019 Richmond City Council Meeting

My name is Deirdre Whalen and I am a long-time resident of Richmond and the chair of the
Richmond Poverty Response Committee. I would like to speak on the Affordable Housing
Strategy update. In my presentation I will refer to data from the Metro Vancouver Housing Data
Bank. This information is easily accessed via Google and is a link on the City’s own website.
The data gives rise to a number of questions. I hope Council of city staff can assist with answers.

Renter households:
Richmond has 19,000 renter households
However, 37% of renter households (7000) have a household income of $35,000 or less
So affordable rent these renter households is (30% of $35,000) or $875 per month
=>» Where are the affordable units for low income individuals and families?
=>» In 2017, the Richmond PRC presented to City Council on the affordability gap between
rents and ability to pay and recommended rent supplements be added to the A.H.
Strategy. Where is this item?

Purpose-built rental:
In 2018 Richmond ‘secured’ 135 purpose-built rentals
In 2017 the number was 97

=>» How many of these units are actually tenanted?

Social housing rental starts:
2015 was 129 (The Storeys)
2016 none
2017 none
2018 none

=>» Rental rates in The Storeys are around $900 per mo. This is the recorded median market
rent in Metro Vancouver in 2019 for a studio apartment. Why then is the Storeys noted in
the strategy as “affordable” or “social” housing?

Demolitions:

2015 - were 450 demos
2016 - 509

2017 — 388

5 year average was 340 demos per year

=>» In 2018 the Richmond PRC presented a delegation with recommendations to include in
the AHS, rental units in houses lost to demolition. Where are these numbers reflected?

Thank you

De Whalen
13631 Blundell Road, Richmond V6W1B6
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Honorable Mayor and Council,
Thank you for this update on Richmond’s affordability [Wom\ ‘?)

In thisreport (plan Page 12, dated June 6™ 2019), the city says it has "secpred” 2000
new affordable housing units since 2017. It is data we need to examine%&“@sﬂm

better1o-fillly make sense of this .number.

Some of my questions/comments after seeing this data :

1,

ot NNOND
What does secured mean? Does jtmgan that the city has approved that these
units will be build soon? Any idea how many in this tally are already built or how
many years till these are built?

Also built may not mean rented out. For the 726 market rental units in this tally
does the city have any mechanism to ensure that these are not rented out short
term and intermittently or lie empty? The city’s current short term bylaw allows
boarding and lodging part of a home without being a B&B and the city has had
limited success so far in patrolling this. You should consider removing the
boarding and lodging for short term unless the home is a principal residence.
Otherwise, | believe the market rental units will end up playing a very limited role
in helping affordable rental options.

The tally (on page 12 makes no mention of what size units are there in these
various categories. It may be very useful to account for size of the units |
request that in the tally the size of the unit be listed under each category. So it
would be clearer whether what is being built is a good fit for the needs in the
community or not. It will also help identify what sized units are in shortfall.

Why are market rental units listed under a separate category than segondary
suites? | assume that both will be rented at prevailing market rates. " Secondary
suites are accepted as affordability housing contribution when re-developing
single family homes, so if | understans correctly there is no cash in lieu
contribution. Does the city ask that the suite be rented out at affordable ratest
rates. What if the suite stays EMPTY? Then this contribution would amount to
nothing in providing an affordablechoice.

It may be good alongside this affordable report of what is being built, a report of
what was demolished over the same period of time :Its size, neighborhood and
whether it was rented. This should include data from both legal and illegal suites
. Adding this dimension will help the public see what is the net effect over the
same time frame. Without adding this dimension the data from demolitions and
its effect on the lack of affordability is obscured from the picture. Also, according
to the affordability report from 2017, 80% of the city's renters find their rental in
this secondary market of older homes.

A neighborhood based housing stock for each year will help. This data could
include: How many homes of what kind exist, how many (of what kind were
demolished in that year in that neighborhood). What was build and how much
was affordable (under various categories: Low market, market rental, below
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market rental or any other kind). If this data was in an excel spread sheet the city
and its residents would have a complete picture at their finger tips and as you
know: transparent and trustworthy data is a sound beginning for making effective
policies that account for what is really happening in the housing sector in the

city. This will help the city set overall city goals as well as neighborhood based
goals for affordability that better match school capacity and maybe plan for new
schools when they are needed.

7. How much prior (upto 2017) shortfall (in terms of various sized units) do we have
in terms of affordability needs in the city?

| hope answers to these questions will make it easier to understand the city’s
affordability goals for the community and help us plan better. and make this city more
affordable for many who are struggling with housing issues currently.

I would like to request that some part of the 2.9 million dollar surplus that the city has -
be diverted into building affordable non-market housing and housing that utilizes other
forms of ownership such as coops and the city help the develope@'to seek funding to
build these from other levels of government.

Thanks for listening.

Niti Sharma
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For Metro Vancouver meetings on Friday, May 24, 2019

Please note these are not the official minutes. Board in Brief is an informal summary. Material relating to any of the
following items is available on request from Metro Vancouver. For more information, please contact
Greg.Valou@metrovancouver.org or Kelly.Sinoski@metrovancouver.org

Metro Vancouver Regional District

E 1.1 Regional Long-Range Growth and Transportation Scenarios — Final Summary Report RECEIVED
APPROVED

The Board received for information the final Summary Report for the Regional Long-Range Growth and
Transportation Scenarios project. It also endorsed the use of the Long Range Growth and Transportation
Scenarios to review and update Metro 2040 and directed staff to distribute the Final Summary Report to
organizations with an interest in long-range regional planning, including member jurisdictions, health
authorities, and the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority.

The Long-Range Growth and Transportation Scenarios have been developed to help consider multiple
possible futures and to better incorporate uncertainty into the regional planning framework.

E 2.1 MVRD Park Land Acquisition Agreement with the City of Abbotsford APPROVED

The Board approved the Abbotsford Disposition of the Eastern Portion of Aldergrove Park Land Agreement
between the Metro Vancouver Regional District and the City of Abbotsford for the sale and transfer of
certain lands to the Metro Vancouver Regional District. It also authorized the Director of Properties, on
behalf of the Metro Vancouver Regional District, to enter into, execute and deliver the MVRD Land
Acquisition Agreement.

In May 2018, the MVRD sold and transferred all of its park land interests within the municipal boundary of
Abbotsford to the City of Abbotsford, including the eastern portion of the Aldergrove Regional Park in order
to facilitate the City of Abbotsford’s withdrawal from the MVRD Regional Parks function. Metro Vancouver
continues to own and operate the western portion of the Aldergrove Regional Park.

The Provincial Government has indicated that as a result of the unique circumstances that originally led to
Aldergrove Regional Park stretching over two different regional districts, a targeted exception to section
334(4) of the Local Government Act may be feasible to enable the MVRD to own and operate that portion
of Aldergrove Park located within the municipal boundary of Abbotsford and without the City of Abbotsford
having to be a participant in MVRD’s Regional Parks service.

Approval of the Lieutenant Governor in Council is required to enable MVRD to own and operate the east
portion of Aldergrove Park located within the municipal boundary of Abbotsford without the City of
Abbotsford having to be a participant in MVRD’s Regional Parks service.
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E 3.1 Board Remuneration Review Findings and Recommendations APPROVED

The Board endorsed the findings of the Board Remuneration Independent Review Panel as presented and
directed staff to bring forward proposed amendments to the Remuneration Bylaw for the Board’s
consideration.

The Board established an Independent Review Panel to study the Board’s remuneration policies set out in
the Remuneration Bylaw. The Independent Review Panel found the current model was fair and appropriate,
and should not be changed, except in two areas: an adjustment to the Electoral Area Director stipend, and
a one-time adjustment in 2020 to offset the 2019 change in CRA taxation policy.

E 3.2 2019 Budget - Status of Reserves APPROVED

With the year-end process complete, operating, discretionary and statutory reserves projected for 2019
have been updated after including 2018 operating surpluses. Reserve applications have also been updated
and are presented in Schedule 1. These applications are consistent with Board direction on the use of
reserves through the adopted reserve policy. The Board approved the application and transfer of reserves
related to the expenditures and provisions as presented.

E 3.3 2018 Statement of Financial Information APPROVED

Board approved the Statement of Financial Information for the year ended December 31, 2018. The
Financial Information Act is provincial legislation that requires local governments to prepare the following
statements and schedules annually:

e Statement of assets and liabilities

Statement of operations

Schedule of debt

Schedule of guarantee and indemnity agreements

e Schedule showing remuneration and expenses paid to or on behalf of each employee that exceeds
$75,000 and amounts paid to or on behalf of elected officials

e Schedule showing the payments for each supplier of goods or services that exceeds $25,000

E 3.4 Lions Bay — Support for Rural Designation for Grant Eligibility APPROVED

The Board resolved to write a letter in support of designating Lions Bay as an eligible rural community for
the purposes of provincial and federal rural grant programs. The letter will be sent to:

e The Minister of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development, with respect
to the BC Rural Dividend Program

e The Minister of Jobs, Trade and Technology, with respect to the Island Coastal Economic Trust

e The federal Minister of Innovation, Science and Economic Development, with respect to Community
Futures funding

CNCL - 27



> Metrovancouver BOARD IN BRIEF

H ( 04-432-620 metrovancouver ]

E 4.1 Expanded Consultation on a Potential Cannabis Production Emission Regulation APPROVED
for Metro Vancouver

The Board endorsed the engagement plan attached to a report titled Expanded Consultation on a Potential
Cannabis Production Emission Regulation for Metro Vancouver, and directed staff to proceed with
engagement and consultation on the proposed approach to regulating air emissions from cannabis
production and processing.

The initial phase of engagement will be conducted between June and September 2019, followed by the
second phase between January and March 2020. It will involve the public, the agricultural sector, cannabis
producers and associations, businesses providing services to the cannabis industry, and municipal
agricultural advisory committees, as well as staff from government agencies with responsibility for
agriculture, the Agricultural Land Reserve, health and the environment at the federal, provincial and local
levels.

The production of cannabis has increased substantially in the Metro Vancouver region since the legalization
of recreational cannabis in October 2018. At the March 29 Board meeting, Board members expressed
concerns about regulating odours from agricultural sources.

E 4.2 Consultation on Proposed Changes to Metro Vancouver’s Ambient Air Quality APPROVED
Objectives

The Board directed staff to proceed with consultation on the proposed changes to Metro Vancouver’s
ambient air quality objectives.

To align with federal standards and provincial objectives, Metro Vancouver is proposing changes to its
ambient air quality objectives for nitrogen dioxide, ground-level ozone and carbon monoxide, to better
protect human health and the environment. Engagement with the public, member jurisdictions, local First
Nations, businesses, health authorities and other stakeholders is intended to provide interested parties
who may be affected with sufficient opportunity to learn about the proposed changes and provide

feedback.
E 4.3 Sensitive Ecosystem Inventory — Sub-Regional Profiles and Assessment of RECEIVED
Ecosystem Loss APPROVED

The Board received for information a report titled Sensitive Ecosystem Inventory — Sub-Regional Profiles
and Assessment of Ecosystem Loss, and resolved to distribute the report to member jurisdiction councils
for information.

The Metro Vancouver Sensitive Ecosystem Inventory update provides key insights into the state of the
region’s most important ecological areas and changes over a five-year period. Causes of loss observed in
the Sensitive Ecosystem Inventory update, including logging, clearing, mowing, agriculture, and residential
development, were assessed and quantified.
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E 5.1 Metro Vancouver External Agency Activities Status Report — May 2019 RECEIVED

The Board received for information the reports from Metro Vancouver representatives to external
organizations:

e Board of Trustees of the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department

e Delta Heritage Airpark Management Committee

e Fraser Basin Council — Lower Mainland Flood Management Strategy Leadership Committee
e Municipal Finance Authority

e Pacific Parklands Foundation

e Union of BC Municipalities

e Western Transportation Advisory Council

G 1.1 Amending Metro Vancouver 2040: Shaping our Future to Reflect Accepted INITIATED
Regional Context Statements

The Board initiated the Metro Vancouver 2040: Shaping our Future amendment process for a Type 3 Minor
Amendment to the regional growth strategy to incorporate regional land use designation changes, the
expansion of the Urban Containment Boundary, and the addition of Frequent Transit Development Areas
stemming from accepted regional context statements.

The Board then gave first, second, and third readings of the Amendment Bylaw, and directed staff to notify
affected local governments and appropriate agencies as per Section 6.4.2 of Metro Vancouver 2040:
Shaping our Future.

Type 3 minor amendments have been used in the past as a means to amend the regional growth strategy
to reflect mapping changes made through accepted regional context statements. Since the adoption in July
2011 of Metro 2040, 21 Regional Context Statements have been accepted by the MVRD Board. Since the
last such amendment in July 2017, four updated RCSs have been accepted by the MVRD Board and three
RCSs have been submitted for reacceptance without amendment and subsequently accepted by the MVRD
Board.

G 1.2 Metro 2040 Land Use Designation Amendment Request from the City of Delta — INITIATED
MK Delta Lands

The Board initiated the regional growth strategy amendment process for the City of Delta to change the
regional land use designation of a property located at 7969 Highway 91 Connector from agricultural to
Industrial, and to include the lands within the Urban Containment Boundary.

The Board also gave first and second readings to the Amending Bylaw; directed staff to notify affected
governments as per Metro Vancouver 2040: Shaping Our Future Section 6.4.2; and, directed staff to request
additional information from City of Delta staff as laid out in the report.

Staff concluded that the proposed amendment will result in a net benefit by increasing the supply of
industrial lands in the region; increasing land in the ALR and providing funds to improve the productivity of
other agricultural lands; and increasing the protection of ecologically important lands contiguous with Burns
Bog by eliminating the potential for permitted@NGtLiak 2@action activities on three additional parcels by
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transferring them to public ownership. The property owner also committed to transfer three lots totalling
132 ha (328 ac), that are located adjacent to the Burns Bog Ecological Conservancy Area, to the City of Delta
for protection from future development.

| 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries RECEIVED

The Board received delegation summaries and information items from Standing Committee meetings.

Housing Committee — May 1, 2019
Information Items:
e 5.2 Regional Affordable Housing Strategy — Progress Report Work Plan

The Regional Affordable Housing Strategy was adopted by the Metro Vancouver Regional District in
2016. Developed with input from member municipalities and housing stakeholders, it provides a
shared vision, goals and strategies for tackling the housing affordability challenge of Metro
Vancouver. This report provides the Housing Committee with the work plan for preparing a progress
report on the Regional Affordable Housing Strategy (2016).

Industrial Lands Strategy Task Force — May 2, 2019
Delegation Summaries:
e 3.1 Marcy Sangret, City of Delta

Aboriginal Relations Committee — May 2, 2019
Information ltems:
e 5.12019 Community to Community Forum Draft Proposal
This report presented the proposed 2019 Community to Community Forum with Musqueam Indian
Band for information. A Community to Community Forum provides an opportunity for bringing
together First Nations and local governments to foster positive relationships between communities.

Given that one of the priorities for the Aboriginal Relations Committee is engagement in initiatives
and activities that strengthen relationships between Metro Vancouver and First Nations within the
region, the proposed Community to Community Forum is intended to meet the Committee’s
objectives.

e 5.2 Quarterly Report on Reconciliation Activities
The report provided a quarterly update on reconciliation activities involving Metro Vancouver and
local governments as per the Committee’s recommendation and for members’ information.

Regional Planning Committee — May 3, 2019
Delegation Summaries:
e 3.1 Sarah Ross, TransLink
Information Items:
e 5.3 Transit-Oriented Affordable Housing Study Phase 3 — Scoping
With the completion of Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Transit-Oriented Affordable Housing Study
(TOAH), itis important to distribute the key findings and learnings to practitioners and policymakers
in the Metro Vancouver region. In February 2019, the MVRD Board allocated funding from the
Sustainability Innovation Fund for TOAH Phase 3, which is intended to assemble the research
findings and communicate them in a n@Nf@nat 3@t encourages learning by doing.
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With an expanded knowledge base, practitioners and decision-makers can advance more effective
policies and actions to encourage new affordable rental housing development in locations close to
rapid transit and along frequent bus corridors. The general scope of Phase 3 comprises three
elements: an Integrated TOAH Implementation Calculator; practitioners workshops; and an
equitable transit-oriented communities summit. The exact scoping and timing of the practitioner
workshops and regional summit will depend on the level of interest of the targeted participants, as
well as related events that may be occurring in 2019 and 2020. Depending on the scoping outcomes,
financial contributions from partner agencies may be sought.

e 5.4 Equity in Regional Growth Management - Project Initiation

This report provided information on the scope for the Equity in Regional Growth Management
project being initiated to inform the update to Metro 2040. The research project will advance
Regional Planning’s understanding of equity considerations as they relate to land use and
transportation planning and policy, with a focus on growth management. The research findings will
help identify gaps and opportunities for Metro Vancouver to better incorporate equity (including
Indigenous perspectives and interests) into its regional growth management practices, and form an
important foundational piece to the update to Metro 2040.

e 5.6 Expanded Consultation on a Potential Cannabis Production Emission Regulation for Metro
Vancouver
The attachment to this report is a staff report to the Climate Action Committee that responds to
the Board’s March 29, 2019 referral motion, including a proposed bylaw development discussion
paper outlining a possible approach for regulating air emissions from cannabis production as well
as an engagement plan to obtain input from potentially affected parties. The engagement plan has
been expanded based on discussion at the March 29, 2019 Board meeting.

Regional Parks Committee — May 15, 2019
Delegation Summaries:
e 3.1 Marcy Sangret, City of Delta
Information ltems:
e 5.3 Regional Parks 2018 Annual Report
This report presented the Regional Parks 2018 Annual Report for information. It provided an
overview of Regional Parks’ visitor and facility use, programming, volunteering, and activities in
2018. The annual report will be used to support ongoing park planning by MVRD and local
municipalities for capital planning, future facility development, program delivery, and resource
management activities.

Zero Waste Committee — May 17, 2019
Information ltems:
e 5.3 Update on Metro Vancouver’s Engagement with the Love Food Hate Waste Canada

Campaign
Metro Vancouver launched a regional Love Food Hate Waste campaign in May 2015. The objective
was to prevent avoidable household food waste. Over three years, Metro Vancouver took the
campaign to such a level that it became the basis for a national campaign — Love Food Hate Waste
Canada — launched in 2018 by the National Zero Waste Council, an initiative of Metro Vancouver.
Love Food Hate Waste Canada brings together nine partners: the cities of Toronto, Vancouver, and
Victoria, Capital Regional District, Me@N@Louv3r1 RECYC-QUEBEC, Province of British Columbia,
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Sobeys, and Walmart. Love Food Hate Waste Canada is a bilingual campaign that uses digital media
(including social media), conventional media, and activations in grocery stores and public events in
communities across Canada. As a partner to a national campaign, Metro Vancouver’s efforts to
reduce household food waste will be greatly enhanced by multiple partners. These partners
communicate the same messages about the value of reducing food waste and the steps households
can take in buying and storing food and in preparing meals that will make a positive difference. As
the campaign grows, it will continue to engage more partners across Canada.

Climate Action Committee — May 17, 2019
Delegation Summaries:
e 3.1 Pat Bell, Community Energy Association
Information Items:
e 5.12019 Update on Liquid Waste Sustainability Innovation Fund Projects
This report presented an update on seven projects funded under the Liquid Waste Sustainability
Innovation Fund. The Sustainability Innovation Funds were created by the Board in 2004 to provide
financial support to utility or Regional District projects that contribute to the region’s sustainability.

e 5.2 2019 Update on Regional District Sustainability Innovation Fund Projects
This report presented an update on six projects funded under the Regional District Sustainability
Innovation Fund. The Sustainability Innovation Funds were created by the Board in 2004 to provide
financial support to utility or Regional District projects that contribute to the region’s sustainability.

e 5.3 2019 Update on Water Sustainability Innovation Fund Projects
This report presented an update on four projects funded under the Water Sustainability Innovation
Fund. The Sustainability Innovation Funds were created by the Board in 2004 to provide financial
support to utility or Regional District projects that contribute to the region’s sustainability.

e 5.6 Air Quality and Climate Action Initiatives in the Caring for the Air 2019 Report
This report presented the 2019 edition of the annual Caring for the Air report and provided
information about outreach conducted for the previous edition of the report with the intention of
raising awareness about climate change and air quality initiatives in the Lower Fraser Valley air shed.

Greater Vancouver Water District
E 1.1 Asset Management for Water Services Policy APPROVED

The Board approved the Asset Management for Water Services Policy as presented.

This Policy outlines GVWD’s commitment and methodology to manage water assets in a manner that
minimizes asset failure risks and impacts to both residents and member jurisdictions while optimizing the
life cycle of assets. It will guide Water Services to meet asset performance targets within a specified budget
and enable evidence based decision making with respect to infrastructure rehabilitation and replacement.
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E 1.2 2019 Budget - Status of Reserves APPROVED

The Board approved the application and transfer of reserves related to the expenditures and provisions as
set out in Schedule 1 of the report.

With the year-end process complete, operating, discretionary and statutory reserves projected for 2019
have been updated after including 2018 operating surpluses. Reserve applications have also been updated
and are presented in Schedule 1. These applications are consistent with Board direction on the use of
reserves through the adopted reserve policy.

E 2.1 Agency Requests to Transport Adult Fish Upstream of Seymour Falls Dam APPROVED

The Board approved a request by the Fisheries and Oceans Canada to transport an annual maximum of 400
returning coho salmon adults upstream of Seymour Falls Dam; and a request by the Ministry of Forests,
Lands, Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development to transport a maximum of 20 returning
steelhead trout adults upstream of Seymour Falls Dam in 2019 and 2020.

These requests do not negatively impact Metro Vancouver operations and are an opportunity for
collaboration with the agencies, First Nations and community groups.

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries RECEIVED

The Board received information items from the Water Committee.

Water Committee — May 16, 2019
Information Items:

e 5.1 BC Hydro Pole Replacement in Capilano Watershed — Project Update
BC Hydro will be completing a multi-year project focused on replacing 75 wooden pole structures
along two transmission lines that run within the Capilano water supply area. Metro Vancouver staff
have worked collaboratively with the BC Hydro project team to review project plans, minimize
environmental disturbance and achieve project efficiencies. The project is expected to commence
in the summer of 2019 and be completed by the fall of 2021.

e 5.2 Watershed Education Program Update
Watershed Education Programs reach over 5,400 residents of Metro Vancouver annually with the
aim of providing all citizens with the opportunity to see where their water comes from,
understanding the value of this resource, recognizing their connection to it, developing a sense of
pride and confidence in the water supply and becoming champions for sustainability.

e 5.4 Fisheries and Oceans Canada Request for Metro Vancouver Water Supply to the Coquitlam
Dam Fish Trap
Metro Vancouver received a request from Fisheries and Oceans Canada (DFO) to provide water
from an adjacent water main to the Coquitlam Dam fish trap. This request requires an adjustment
to Metro Vancouver operations but does not negatively impact the water supply. The provision of
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water to the Coquitlam Dam fish trap provides an opportunity for collaboration with the agencies,
Kwikwetlem First Nation and ongoing support of the Kwikwetlem Sockeye Restoration Project.

e 5.52019 Watering Regulations Communications and Regional Water Conservation Campaign
This report contained an update on regional communications to support the 2019 watering
regulations and the regional water conservation campaign. Metro Vancouver undertakes
communication and engagement initiatives to ensure water resources are conserved and efficiently
used throughout the region.

e 5.62019 Water Wagon Schedule
This report presented the preliminary 2019 event schedule for Metro Vancouver’'s Water
Wagon.

Greater Vancouver Sewage and Drainage District
E 1.1 Asset Management for Solid Waste Services Policy APPROVED

The Board approved the Asset Management for Solid Waste Services Policy as presented.

The new Asset Management for Solid Waste Services Policy will improve the ability to manage a broad range
of asset data, prioritize maintenance activities and make informed decisions regarding long-term
maintenance and capital replacements. The goal of the Asset Management for Solid Waste Services Policy
is to balance asset performance, risk and cost.

E 1.2 2019 Budget - Status of Reserves APPROVED

The Board approved the application and transfer of reserves related to the expenditures and provisions as
set out in Schedule 1 of the report.

With the year-end process complete, operating, discretionary and statutory reserves projected for 2019
have been updated after including 2018 operating surpluses. Reserve applications have also been updated
and presented. These applications are consistent with Board direction on the use of reserves through the
adopted reserve policy.

E 2.1 Award of Contract Resulting from Request for Proposal No. 18-001: Construction RECEIVED
Services for the Annacis Island Wastewater Treatment Plant Outfall Project

The Board approved the award of a contract for an amount of up to $184,124,380.27 (exclusive of taxes) to
Pomerleau Bessac General Partnership, resulting from Request for Proposal No. 18-001: Construction
Services for the Annacis Island Wastewater Treatment Plant Outfall Project. Pomerleau Bessac General
Partnership was identified as the highest ranked compliant proposal.
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E 2.2 Award of Phase C, Construction Engineering Services Resulting from RFP No. 14- APPROVED
097: Annacis Island Wastewater Treatment Plant Transient Mitigation and Outfall
Expansion Project

The Board approved the award of Phase C, Construction Engineering Services for an amount of up to
$16,989,113.00 (exclusive of taxes) to the Phase A and B consultant, CDM Smith Canada ULC for the Annacis
Wastewater Treatment Plant Transient Mitigation and Outfall Project. CDM Smith Canada ULC has
completed Phase A (Pre-Design Services) and Phase B (Detailed Design Services).

E 2.3 Award of Contract Resulting from Tender No. 18-296: Supply and Installation of APPROVED
North Road Trunk Sewer No. 2 — Phase 1A Brunette River to Lougheed Highway

The Board approved the award of a contract in the amount of $5,584,406.51 (exclusive of taxes) to Clearway
Construction Inc., resulting from Tender No. 18-296: Supply and Installation of North Road Trunk Sewer No.
2 — Phase 1A Brunette River to Lougheed Highway. Clearway Construction Inc. submitted the lowest
compliant bid.

E 3.1 Solid Waste Energy Policy APPROVED

The Board directed staff to prepare a business case, including a recommended ownership model, for a
district energy system using heat from the Waste-to-Energy Facility.

At its May 17, 2019 meeting, the Zero Waste Committee considered a Solid Waste Energy Policy and asked
for more clarification on the types of projects that would be subject to it. The Solid Waste Energy Policy
would apply to Metro Vancouver Solid Waste Services projects that generate energy or recyclables,
particularly projects that generate greenhouse gas emission reductions. District heating from the Waste-
to-Energy Facility would increase energy recovery and reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries RECEIVED

The Board received a delegation summary and information items from Standing Committee meetings.

Liquid Waste Committee — May 16, 2019
Information ltems:
e 5.1 lonalIsland Wastewater Treatment Plant — Project Definition Update

The lona Island Wastewater Treatment Plant Project Definition technical workshop 3 was held on
April 10th and 11th, 2019. This workshop focused on integrating wastewater treatment technology
concepts with community integration and resource recovery themes to produce three overall
wastewater treatment plant concepts. Stakeholder and First Nations engagement is underway and
activities will continue throughout 2019 and 2020.

Zero Waste Committee — May 17, 2019
Delegation Summaries:
e 3.1 Sam Scoten, CheckSammy
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Information Items:
e 5.2 2018 Disposal Ban Program Update
The Disposal Ban Program is a key waste reduction strategy identified in the Integrated Solid Waste
and Resource Management Plan. In 2018, 188,135 loads were inspected, 16,707 loads were found
to contain banned materials and 3,554 surcharge notices were issued. The Disposal Ban Program
remains an effective tool to encourage waste reduction and diversion.

Metro Vancouver Housing Corporation
E 1.1 2019 Budget - Status of Reserves APPROVED

With the year-end process complete, operating, discretionary and statutory reserves projected for 2019
have been updated after including 2018 operating surpluses. Reserve applications have also been
updated and are presented in Schedule 1. These applications are consistent with Board direction on the
use of reserves through the adopted reserve policy.

The Board approved the application and transfer of reserves related to the expenditures and provisions
as set out in Schedule 1 of the report.

| 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries APPROVED

The Board received an information item from the Housing Committee meeting.

Housing Committee — May 1, 2019
Information Items:
e 5.3 Spring Flower and Community Garden Programs

Metro Vancouver Housing is committed to tenant engagement. The Spring Flower and
Community Garden Programs are two of a number of initiatives designed to inspire a sense of
pride and ownership among tenants living in Metro Vancouver Housing sites. Both the Spring
Flower and Community Garden Programs are equally beneficial to both Metro Vancouver Housing
and tenants.

Metro Vancouver Housing provides 321 garden plots for housing tenants for their enjoyment and
wellbeing. Spring flowers are provided to Tenants Associations to beautify housing sites and
create healthy engaged communities.
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Date:

Place:

Present:

Call to Order:

6209594

Special General Purposes Committee

Monday, June 10, 2019

Anderson Room
Richmond City Hall

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair
Councillor Chak Au

Councillor Carol Day

Councillor Kelly Greene
Councillor Alexa Loo

Councillor Bill McNulty
Councillor Linda McPhail
Councillor Harold Steves
Councillor Michael Wolfe

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:12 p.m.

COUNCILLOR KELLY GREENE

PROPOSED UBCM RESOLUTIONS
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No.)

Minutes

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) the proposed declaration requirements
for relatives of elected representatives, (ii) conflict of interest policies for
municipal staff, and (iii) options to increase transparency in local government.

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that City policy requires staff
to declare a conflict of interest when such a situation arises. Staff added that
disclosures filed by candidates are available for public review and a
declaration is required for assets individually or jointly held by a candidate.

As a result of the discussion, there was agreement to deal with the following
proposed resolutions on the Statement of Disclosure Updates, the Conflict of
Interest Complaint Mechanism and the Conflict of Interest During Election

Period scparately.

CNCL - 37



Special General Purposes Commitiee
Monday, June 10, 2019

The following was moved and seconded

To forward the following resolution for consideration at UBCM and to send
copies to the Local Governments of BC for their favourable considerations
prior to the 2019 UBCM meeting. Additional copy to be sent to the Minister
of Municipal Affairs.

(1)  Statement of Disclosure Updates

Whereas professional regulatory bodies, such as CPABC, BC
Law Society, APEGBC, and others, have conflict of interest and
ethics rules for their members, under which appearance of
conflict of interest is disallowed;

Whereas the public expects elected representatives to act to a
professional standard of conduct;

And whereas the scope of decisions and responsibilities of an
elected representative can be broad and encompass a variety of
issues;

So be it resolved that the Statement of Disclosure for municipal
nominees and elected representatives be updated to additionally
include a spouse’s assets; a spouse’s liabilities; and real
property, other than their primary residence, held singly or
jointly by a spouse, child, brother, sister, mother or father.
Further, within 60 days of being sworn in, fto file a confidential
financial disclosure statement fo a non-partisan Municipal
Conflict of Interest Commissioner.

As a result of the discussion, amendments to the enactment clause were
proposed to remove reference to “brother, sister” and to include the statement
“in the municipality in which they are elected” as follows:
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It was moved and seconded
That the enactment clause be amended to read as follows:

So be it resolved that the Statement of Disclosure for municipal
nominees and elected representatives be updated to additionally
include a spouse’s assets; a spouse’s liabilities; and real
property in the municipality in which they are elected, other
than their primary residence, held singly or jointly by a spouse,
child, mother or father. Further, within 60 days of being sworn
in, to file a confidential financial disclosure statement to a non-
partisan Municipal Conflict of Interest Commissioner.

DEFEATED

Opposed: Mayor Brodie

Cllrs. Loo

McNulty

McPhail

Steves

Discussion ensued with regard to proposed declaration requirements for

relatives of elected representatives, and as a result of the discussion an

amendment to the enactment clause of the Statement of Disclosure Updates

resolution was introduced to add the words “to the best knowledge of the
candidate.”

It was moved and seconded
That the enactment clause be amended to read as follows:

So be it resolved that the Statement of Disclosure for municipal
nominees and elected representatives be updated to additionally
include a spouse’s assets; a spouse’s liabilities; and real
property, other than their primary residence, held singly or
Jjointly by a spouse, child, brother, sister, mother or father, to the
best knowledge of the candidate. Further, within 60 days of
being sworn in, to file a confidential financial disclosure
statement to a non-partisan Municipal Conflict of Interest
Commissioner.

CARRIED

Opposed: Mayor Brodie
Cllrs. Loo

McNulty

McPhail

Discussion then ensued with regard to a forthcoming staff report on
establishing a Code of Conduct, and as a result of the discussion, the
following referral motion was introduced:
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It was moved and seconded

That the proposed resolutions on the Statement of Disclosure Updates, the
Conflict of Interest Complaint Mechanism and the Conflict of Interest
During Election Period, be referred to staff for consideration in relation to
a forthcoming report on Code of Conduct.

The question on the referral motion was not called as discussion took place on
establishing a province-wide code of conduct policy.

The question on the referral motion was then called and it was DEFEATED
with Cllrs. Au, Day, Greene, Steves and Wolfe opposed.

The question on the main motion, as amended, on the Statement of
Disclosure Updates, which reads as follows:

To forward the following resolution for consideration at UBCM and to send
copies to the Local Governments of BC for their favourable considerations
prior to the 2019 UBCM meeting. Additional copy to be sent to the Minister of
Municipal Affairs.

(1)  Statement of Disclosure Updates

Whereas professional regulatory bodies, such as CPABC, BC
Law Society, APEGBC, and others, have conflict of interest and
ethics rules for their members, under which appearance of
conflict of interest is disallowed;

Whereas the public expects elected representatives to act to a
professional standard of conduct,

And whereas the scope of decisions and responsibilities of an
elected representative can be broad and encompass a variety of
issues;

So be it resolved that the Statement of Disclosure for municipal
nominees and elected representatives be updated to additionally
include a spouse’s assets; a spouse’s liabilities; and real
property, other than their primary residence, held singly or
Jointly by a spouse, child, brother, sister, mother or father, to the
best knowledge of the candidate. Further, within 60 days of being
sworn in, to file a confidential financial disclosure statement to a
non-partisan Municipal Conflict of Interest Commissioner.

was then called and it was CARRIED with Mayor Brodie, and Cllrs. Loo,
McNulty and McPhail opposed.

Committee then considered the second motion - Conflict of Interest
Complaint Mechanism.
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It was moved and seconded

To forward the following resolution for consideration at UBCM and to send
copies to the Local Governments of BC for their favourable considerations
prior to the 2019 UBCM meeting. Additional copy to be sent to the Minister
of Municipal Affairs.

(2)  Conflict of Interest Complaint Mechanism

Whereas professional regulatory bodies, such as CPABC, BC
Law Society, APEGBC, and others, have conflict of interest and
ethics rules for their members and enforce them through a
complaints process,

Whereas the public expects elected representatives to be held to
a professional standard of conduct;

And whereas the only remedy for a citizen complaint of a
municipal elected person’s conflict of interest is through a
Jjudgement of the Supreme Court of British Columbia;

So be it resolved that the Province of British Columbia provide a
mechanism to resolve and remedy conflict of interest complaints
through a non-partisan Municipal Conflict of Interest
Commissioner or expansion of the scope of powers of the BC
Ombudsperson.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion ensued with regard to
the challenges of submitting cases to the Supreme Court of British Columbia
and ethical authoritative bodies in other jurisdictions.

As a result of the discussion, the following amendment meotion to the
enactment clause of the Conflict of Interest Complaint Mechanism resolution
was introduced to replace the word “provide” with “consider” and to include
the word “including” following the word “mechanism”;

It was moved and seconded
That the enactment clause be amended to read as follows:

So be it resolved that the Province of British Columbia consider
a mechanism including to resolve and remedy conflict of
interest complaints through a non-partisan Municipal Conflict
of Interest Commissioner or expansion of the scope of powers of
the BC Ombudsperson.

CARRIED

The question on the main motion, as amended, on the Conflict of Interest
Complaint Mechanism, which reads as follows:
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To forward the following resolution for consideration at UBCM and to send
copies to the Local Governments of BC for their favourable considerations
prior to the 2019 UBCM meeting. Additional copy to be sent to the Minister of
Municipal Affairs.

(2)  Conflict of Interest Complaint Mechanism

Whereas professional regulatory bodies, such as CPABC, BC
Law Society, APEGBC, and others, have conflict of interest and
ethics rules for their members and enforce them through a
complaints process,

Whereas the public expects elected representatives to be held to a
professional standard of conduct,

And whereas the only remedy for a citizen complaint of a
municipal elected person’s conflict of interest is through a
Judgement of the Supreme Court of British Columbia;

So be it resolved that the Province of British Columbia consider a
mechanism including to resolve and remedy conflict of interest
complaints through a non-partisan Municipal Conflict of Interest
Commissioner or expansion of the scope of powers of the BC
Ombudsperson.

was then called and it was CARRIED with Mayor Brodie and Cllr. McNulty
opposed.

Committee then considered the third motion — the Conflict of Interest During
Election Period.

It was moved and seconded

To forward the following resolution for consideration at UBCM and to send
copies to the Local Governments of BC for their favourable considerations
prior to the 2019 UBCM meeting. Additional copy to be sent to the Minister
of Municipal Affairs.

(3}  Conflict of Interest During Election Period

Whereas provincial and federal governments are dissolved
during the writ period;

Whereas an elected representative could electioneer during the
election period and be perceived to be acting for political gain;

Whereas an elected representative may not be re-elected, yet
retain their position for a period of time after Election Day,
effectively a “lame duck” candidate; and

Whereas municipal government staff effectively manage the city
without a sitting Council for four consecutive weeks each year,
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at minimum;

So be it resolved that all municipal government meetings, except
those provided for under the Emergency Program Act, be
suspended during the election period and that the previous
municipal government is dissolved on Election Day.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion ensued with regard to
holding Council meetings during the summer and winter break periods, during
the election period, and in the event of an emergency.

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that (i) there are no provisions
in the Local Government Act to delegate all of Council’s authority to City
staff, (ii) the Local Government Act provides a period of time between the end
of the election and the certification of a new Council to challenge the election
results, and (iii) Council has the ability to call special meetings during the
summer and winter break periods.

The question on the motion was then called and it was DEFEATED with
Mayor Brodie and Cllrs. Au, Loo, McNulty, McPhail and Steves opposed.

ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded
That the meeting adjourn (5:13 p.m.).

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the meeting of the General
Purposes Committee of the Council of the
City of Richmond held on Monday, June
10, 2019.

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie Evangel Biason

Chair

Legislative Services Coordinator
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City of
Richmond Minutes

Community Safety Committee

Date: Tuesday, June 11, 2019

Place: Anderson Room
Richmond City Hall

Present: Councillor Bill McNulty, Chair
Councillor Alexa Loo
Councillor Carol Day

Councillor Kelly Greene
Councillor Harold Steves

Also Present: Councillor Chak Au
Councillor Linda McPhail

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded
That the minutes of the meeting of the Community Safety Committee held
on May 14, 2019, be adopted.

CARRIED

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE

July 9, 2019, (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson Room

COMMUNITY SAFETY DIVISION

1.  COMMUNITY BYLAWS MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT - APRIL

2019
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-01) (REDMS No. 6181948)

In reply to questions from Committee, staff advised that:

= previous to this year, staff had not received complaints regarding
smoking infractions;
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staff follow up on overnight parking calls and issue tickets regardless if
it’s a resident parking or an individual staying in their vehicle
overnight;

cases where an individual is found to be staying overnight in their
vehicle are forwarded to the Ministry and vulnerable persons unit with
the RCMP;

adjudications set for June 11™ were a mix of animal control violation
tickets and parking tickets;

enforcement officers have been instructed to put more emphasis on
maintenance around vacant properties which may explain the increase
in unsightly premises complaints and enforcement staff do self-
generate these calls;

the grease calls for service comparison in Figure 2 of the staff report is
the year to date average for all years up to April of that year;

enforcement of sign violations have been stable since the adoption of
the new Sign Regulation Bylaw in 2017;

three temporary canvassers for dog licencing patrols have recently
started and through the summer staff will focus more enforcement on
dogs;

staff are in the process of writing a report to Committee regarding short
term rentals;

staff are following up on all complaints regarding short term rentals and
have been proactive in their approach;

staff investigate each short term rental listing which could include
multiples listings for one property and is investigated on a case by case
basis as violations must be caught in the act;

since the new regulations related to bed and breakfasts were instituted,
staff proactively follow up on every listing found not just complaints;

staff are coming back with recommendations, including a registration
system and resource requirements, however booking companies will
need to cooperate with the City to combat illegal short term rental
listings; and

staff actively investigate blatant illegal postings for short term rentals
however staff require further follow up for multiple listings including
locating the addresses.
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Discussion ensued regarding (1) a resolution from Council from the previous
May 14, 2019 Committee meeting concerning more assertive enforcement of
short-term rentals, (ii) instituting a proactive approach in investigating bylaw
infractions, and (iii) requiring registration information to be posted on any
advertisements for short term rentals if registration requirements were
implemented.

As a result of the discussion, the following motion was introduced:

It was moved and seconded
That bylaw enforcement staff move from complaint based to proactive
investigations on all bylaw issues.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion took place on (i)
further rules and refinement for short-term rentals, (ii) a public registry for
short term rentals, and (iii) implementing advertising requirements for short
term rentals.

The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRIED.

It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled “Community Bylaws Monthly Activity Report —
April 2019”, dated May 8, 2019, from the General Manager, Community
Safety, be received for information.

CARRIED

RICHMOND FIRE-RESCUE MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT -

APRIL 2019
(File Ref. No. 09-5000-01) (REDMS No. 6183604 v. 3)

In response to queries from Committee, Jim Wishlove, Deputy Fire Chief,
commented that (i) a significant number of applicants applied to the
firefighter posting and 101 candidates will be invited to complete physical
testing next week with approximately 70-75 to be interviewed for hiring this
year and next year, (ii) overdose/poisoning is a dispatch grouping and may or
may not be a fentanyl related call, (iii) Richmond Fire-Rescue staff have not
recently used Narcan in any calls for services, and (iv) tall grass on
boulevards does present a fire risk particularly as the weather becomes drier
and hotter.

It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled “Richmond Fire-Rescue Monthly Activity Report
— April 2019”, dated May 15, 2019, from the Fire Chief, Richmond Fire-
Rescue, be received for information.

CARRIED
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FIRE CHIEF BRIEFING
(Verbal Report)

(i)  Structural Protection Unit Trailer

Mr. Wishlove provided an update regarding the deployment of the Structural
Protection Unit Trailer noting that Richmond Fire-Rescue has completed staff
training and the unit is now deployable and available for use as a resource.

RCMP MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT - APRIL 2019
(File Ref. No. 09-5000-01) (REDMS No. 6163353 v. 2)

Will Ng, Superintendent, Officer in Charge, spoke to the April 2019 RCMP
Monthly Activity Report noting that (i) there has been a dramatic reduction in
property crime due to intentional visibility in intelligence led locations based
on crime data, (ii) late night road blocks at Vancouver International Airport
and throughout the city have been successful in capturing impaired drivers
and other violations, (iii) there was a slight increase in sex offences, however
there were no trends or patterns related to relational offences or assaults, (iv)
there continues to be a rise in calls for mental health services with over 200
year to date, and (v) RCMP staff are working on scheduling for increased
support to address the increase in mental health calls for service.

In response to questions from Committee, Supt. Ng advised that:

. crime prevention newsletter is currently available to block watch
members and could be made available in community centres in
Richmond;

. residential break and enters includes any incident that enters the

physical boundaries or threshold of the residence and property taken on
the property is classified as theft from property which can be provided
in the future;

. an online crime reporting tool for smaller offences will be launched
next month with Richmond serving as a pilot municipality;

" RCMP staff are currently exploring real time crime mapping;

= number of calls in Richmond for substance addiction or mental health

has no direct correlation with people moving into the area but there has
been an increase in mental calls for services for people coming off of
international flights and there are also chronic mental health clients
with up to 30% calls for one client alone;

= just waiting for letter from Ottawa for approval of 19 officers approved
for this year and then RCMP staff will start advertising those positions
and hope to populate by the end of this year; and
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= RCMP staff attended Iona beach this past weekend and registered 58
bicycles.

It was moved and seconded

That the report titled “RCMP Monthly Activity Report — April 2019, dated
May 14, 2019, from the Officer in Charge, Richmond RCMP Detachment,
be received for information.

CARRIED

2018-2019 RCMP ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN FOURTH

QUARTER (JANUARY 1 - MARCH 31, 2019)
(File Ref. No. 09-5000-01) (REDMS No. 6163331 v. 2)

Supt. Ng reviewed the quarterly RCMP performance plan report and
commented that (1) last year set a goal of 2% reduction property crime
however statistics are currently still 2% over for the year, (ii) the Cannabis
Act led to a reduction in charges for cannabis and trafficking and made an
impact on RCMP’s ability to meet drug offence targets, (iii) had a dramatic
increase in calls for mental health service than years previous, and (iv) this
year RCMP are looking at reduction in property crime and are currently on
target and to meet targets to reduce organized crime, RCMP staff are looking
to introduce new initiatives on combating money laundering as well as focus
on wraparound services to assist with clients with complex needs.

In reply to queries from Committee, Supt. Ng remarked that (i) RCMP have
started investigations at private residences in Richmond in relation to money
laundering and have been attending currency exchanges and casinos to ensure
accountability, (i) RCMP have increased traffic enforcement and producing
record numbers, (iii) the Prolific Offender Suppression Team has been very
successful with a focus on city centre and have arrested some of these
offenders, (iv) RCMP have deployed every wrap around service available for
the individual that accounted for 20 per cent of the mental health calls for
service and are working towards a resolution, (v) the Cannabis Act does allow
for more enforcement laws related to cannabis smoking and possession, (vi)
RCMP staff can provide information on violation tickets in relation to
cannabis offences, and (vii) there is one active investigation related to
swarming and is currently being investigated.

It was moved and seconded

That the report titled “2018-2019 Richmond RCMP Detachment Annual
Performance Plan Fourth Quarter Results (January 1 to March 31, 2019)”,
dated May 13, 2019, from the Officer in Charge, Richmond RCMP

Detachment, be received for information.
CARRIED
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6. RCMP/OIC BRIEFING
(Verbal Report)

None.

7. COMMITTEE STANDING ITEM
E-Comm

The Chair advised that the Annual General Meeting is to be held next
Thursday, June 20, 2019.

8.  MANAGER’S REPORT

None.

ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded
That the meeting adjourn (4:55 p.m.).

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the meeting of the Community
Safety Committee of the Council of the
City of Richmond held on Tuesday, June

11, 2019.
Councillor Bill McNulty Amanda Welby
Chair Legislative Services Coordinator
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ichmond Report to Committee
To: Finance Committee Date: May 3, 2019
From: Andrew Nazareth File:

General Manager, Finance and Corporate

Services
Re: 2018 Annual Report and 2018 Annual Report — Highlights

Staff Recommendation

That the reports titled, “2018 Annual Report” and the “2018 Annual Report — Highlights” be
approved.

A

Andrew Nazareth
General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services
(4095)

Att. 2

REPORT CONCURRENCE

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER
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Staff Report
Origin
Pursuant to Section 98 of the Community Charter, before June 30" in each year, a Council must:
a) Prepare an annual report
b) Make the report available for public inspection
¢) Have the report available for public inspection at a Council or other public meeting
Analysis

The City of Richmond’s annual report formally presents the audited financial statements and
other relevant financial, economic and demographic indicators to the public. The report also
highlights many of the City’s significant achievements and milestones from 2018.

Two versions of the Annual Report are produced each year in order to reach the different
audiences interested in this information. The comprehensive 2018 Annual Report meets all
legislative requirements for financial reporting as required under the Community Charter for
British Columbia’s local governments. This version will be publicly available through the City’s
website at www.richmond.ca and printed only on a demand basis. The comprehensive version
includes the City’s audited consolidated financial statements; the City’s corporate objectives and
success indicators, as identified through Council’s Term Goals; and a listing of permissive
exemptions. In addition to the statutorily required information, the comprehensive version
provides information on the City’s milestones from 2018, including awards and achievements
and a variety of key corporate financial and community demographic statistical data for the year.

For a broader audience, the City also produces a condensed financial reporting document known
as the 2018 Annual Report — Highlights. This shorter version, which is designed to be accessible
and easily understandable for a general audience, provides information about the City of
Richmond, its services, highlights from 2018 and the City’s financial condition. This condensed
version will also be available through the City’s website and limited copies will be mailed out
and available to the general public at Richmond City Hall. This year, the layout has been
enhanced to allow for an expanded section highlighting the City’s completion of the Community
Safety Building Program, which included construction of five new fire halls and the Richmond
Community Safety Building (home of the Richmond RCMP detachment) from 2007 to 2018.

Both copies will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association for consideration
in their annual awards program.

The reports are produced entirely in house through the joint efforts of the Finance Department
and the Corporate Communications and Marketing Department.

Financial Impact

None.
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Conclusion

The City of Richmond 2018 Annual Report and the 2018 Annual Report — Highlights satisfy the
Community Charter requirements for financial reporting and are important instruments in
ensuring public transparency and accountability for the management of City finances. The
reports also provide useful information on the City’s achievements and milestones during the
2018 fiscal year.

vowAs g ToAsves, o
Director, Finance 1d

LVial KCLLLIE,

(4064) (4399)

Att. 1: 2018 Annual Report
2: 2018 Annual Report — Highlights
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Our vision Is to be the most appealing, livable
and well-managed community in Canada
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Message from the Mayor

The City of Richmond’s 2018 Annual Report reflects another banner year
for our community.

2018 saw the opening of the new Brighouse No.1 Fire Hall. As our
central fire hall serving our busy City Centre, this new state of the art
facility is a key public safety building. The opening of No. 1 Fire Hall also
marked the conclusion of the ambitious community safety infrastructure
program. Since 2007, the City has constructed five new fire halls and
completed a major retrofit of a sixth fire hall. We also acquired and
completed a retrofit of the Richmond Community Safety Building to
serve as home for the Richmond RCMP detachment.

Council continues to make community safety a top priority. In 2018,

we approved funding for an expanded City Centre Community Policing
Office. This satellite facility will provide enhanced police presence and service within the City
Centre. Council also made further investments in increased police staffing to meet the needs of our
growing population, which has passed 225,000.

The continued strong growth of our community was reflected in another busy year of construction,
with building permit value exceeding $879 million, the second highest total ever, while the number
of licenced businesses surpassed 14,000.

With added growth, community mobility is another top priority for Council. The City continues

to make significant investments in transportation infrastructure across Richmond. Of note,
construction began on the new River Parkway. This will provide a major new arterial route bisecting
our City Centre.

Improving our enviable quality of life is always top of mind for Council. In 2018, Richmond was
among the first cities in the world to be named as a Global Active City. To earn this designation,

a city must offer residents the opportunity to enjoy active, healthy lifestyles while improving their
well-being. Richmond joins Buenos Aires, Hamburg, Liverpool and others among the first six cities
to receive this prestigious recognition.

Richmond’s long-standing reputation for innovation and excellence was further highlighted as

we were named a finalist in the Government of Canada’s Smart Cities Challenge. Our innovative
concept proposes using technology and data to improve community resiliency to disaster, enhance
transportation and combat climate change.

\We owe our success to many who contribute to making Richmond a better place, including our
staff, volunteers, business, and community and government partners. This Annual Report contains
considerable more information on our goals and achievements and, as always, | invite your
comments and questions through my office.

Malcolm Brodie
Mayor, City of Richmond
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Richmond City Council

As of November 5, 2018

Front row, left to right:
Councillor Michael Wolfe,
Councillor Bill McNulty,
Mayor Malcolm Brodie,
Councillor Linda McPhail,
Councillor Kelly Greene

Back row, left to right:
Deputy Fire Chief Kevin Gray,
Richmond Fire-Rescue,
Councillor Harold Steves,
Councillor Carol Day,
Councillor Chak Au,
Councillor Alexa Loo,

Constable Leah Riske,
Richmond RCMP

Until November 4, 2018

Front row, left to right:

Councillor Carol Day,
Councillor Bill McNulty,
Mayor Malcolm Brodie,
Councillor Linda McPhail,
Councillor Harold Steves

Back row, left to right:

Constable Adam Carmichael,
Richmond RCMP,

Councillor Chak Au,
Councillor Derek Dang,
Councillor Ken Johnston,
Councillor Alexa Loo,
Captain Jack Beetstra,
Richmond Fire-Rescue

Connect with Richmond City Council

To contact Council: mayorandcouncillors@richmond.ca or call 604-276-4000.

For Council Meetings agendas and minutes, visit: www.richmond.ca/cityhall/council/agendas.
To watch Council meetings on live streaming or view videos of past meetings visit:
www.richmond.ca/cityhall/council/watch-video.
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City of Richmond organizational chart

as of December 31, 2018
Chief Administrative Office
George Duncan, CAO

Deputy Chief Administrative Office
Robert Gonzalez, Deputy CAO

Community Services

Serena Lusk, GM Robert Gonzalez, GM

Community Safety
Cecilia Achiam, GM

Civic officials

Chief Administrative Officer........cccccoiiiiiiiiii
Deputy Chief Administrative Officer...............ccoociviiiiin
General Manager, Community Safety..........ccccoviiiiiiiiiinn.
General Manager, Community Services ............ccooevvveeeeeeennn..
General Manager, Engineering and Public Works ..................
General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services................
General Manager, Planning and Development.......................

General Manager, Interagency Programs and

Steveston Waterfront Initiatives...............cccccccoiiiiii.
Director, City Clerk's Office........oooiiiiiiiie
City SONCITON .
Chief, Richmond Fire-ResCUe.........ccooviiiiiieee e

Affiliated agencies

Officer in Charge, Royal Canadian Mounted Police ...............
Chief Operating Officer, Richmond Olympic Oval ..................
Chief Librarian, Richmond Public Library.............ccccccooiinn.

Joe Erceg, GM

Engineering and Public Works  Finance and Corporate Services
Andrew Nazareth, GM

Planning and Development

George Duncan

Robert Gonzalez

Cecilia Achiam

Serena Lusk from January 30, 2018
Robert Gonzalez

Andrew Nazareth

Joe Erceg

Dave Semple

David Weber

Tony Capuccinello Iraci from November 15, 2018
Tim Wilkinson from January 10, 2018

Will Ng
John Mills
Susan Walters

Chief Executive Officer, Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd............ John Irving
Banker Auditors
Scotiabank KPMG
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Message from the Chief Administrative Officer

| am pleased to present the City of Richmond’s Annual Report for the year
2018. This report details our outstanding financial position, while illustrating
how we are achieving a key element of our vision, which is for Richmond to
be Canada’s best managed city.

During the past Council term, which concluded in 2018, our administration
made major strides in delivering on Council’s nine term goals. Those
achievements are highlighted throughout the Annual Report.

Corporate and community sustainability continues to be one of Council’s top
priority areas. Richmond has long been recognized as a leader in embracing
the three pillars of sustainability. A strong focus on the long-term economic,
social and environmental health of our community is always at the forefront
of our planning and actions.

Environmentally, we have made significant inroads in offsetting the impact of global climate change.
From 2007 to 2015, we were able to reduce overall greenhouse gas emissions in the City by 12 per
cent, even as our population grew by 12 per cent during the same period. This has reduced greenhouse
gas emissions and energy costs for the City, local residents and businesses. Our award-winning District
Energy Utility is on track to become the largest of its kind in North America. In 2018, we became the
first in North America to require that all parking stalls in new developments be energized to support
Level 2 Electric Vehicle charging.

Our innovative diking and drainage utility allows us to make substantive annual investments to ensure
our island city is protected from any potential flood risk, including extreme weather events and rising
sea levels.

On the social side, the City has secured hundreds of affordable housing units and child care spaces,
while updating policies to ensure we continue to address these critical needs in our community.

Strong financial stewardship through our Long Term Financial Management Strategy is also a hallmark
of our City administration. This Strategy has allowed Council to limit property tax increases, while

still making significant investments in infrastructure and programs. Richmond’s property taxes remain
among the lowest in the region and we maintain a favourable business-residential tax balance.

Our strong commitment to community sustainability allows us to continue to provide for the needs of a
growing and evolving community, while delivering services that are second to none and providing great
value for our taxpayers.

..,

George Duncan
Chief Administrative Officer
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Council Term Goals: 2014 to 2018

The Community Charter requires that all BC
municipalities include a statement in the Annual
Report of their objectives for the current and
future years, along with measures to track
success towards these objectives.

The City of Richmond’s objectives and success
indicators are expressed through the Council
Term Goals. With the beginning of a new four-
year term of Council in 2014, a term goal setting
process was undertaken to help Council fulfil its
governance role and achieve a successful term of
office. Council adopted a revised set of nine Term
Goals, which provided the framework for the
City's programs and services through 2018.

1. A Safe Community

Maintain emphasis on community safety
to ensure Richmond continues to be a safe
community.

2018 Achievement

City Council approved an additional 16 police
officers for the Richmond RCMP, meaning a total
increase of 40 new officers during the 2014—
2018 Council term.

R R R

Council approved funding for an additional 16 police officers
in 2018.

Richmond was one of the first in the world to receive Global
Active Cities designation.

2. A Vibrant, Active, and
Connected City

Continue the development and implementation
of an excellent and accessible system of
programs, services, and public spaces that
reflect Richmond's demographics, rich heritage,
diverse needs, and unique opportunities, and
that facilitate active, caring, and connected
communities.

2018 Achievement

Richmond was selected as one of the first six
Global Active Cities in the world, recognizing our
ongoing commitment to community wellness and
active lifestyles.
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5. Partnerships and Collaboration
Continue development and utilization of
collaborative approaches and partnerships with
intergovernmental and other agencies to help
meet the needs of the Richmond community.

2018 Achievement

The City was named a finalist for a $10 million
prize in the national Smart Cities Challenge
competition. The City’s innovative proposal was
built on partnerships with other government
agencies, business and academia.

Richmond was named as a finalist in the Smart Cities
Challenge.

3. A Well-Planned Community

Adhere to effective planning and growth
management practices to maintain and enhance
the livability, sustainability and desirability of our
City and its neighbourhoods, and to ensure the
results match the intentions of our policies and
bylaws.

2018 Achievement

Council approved development of a new 40-unit
temporary modular housing project to serve
people experiencing homelessness.

i e

4_ Leadershlp |n Sustalnablllty Expanded recycling has resulted in 78% diversion of

household waste from landfills.
Continue advancement of the City’s sustainability
framework and initiatives to improve the short
and long term livability of our City, and that
maintain Richmond'’s position as a leader in
sustainable programs, practices and innovations.

2018 Achievement

The Richmond recycling program was expanded
with acceptance of flexible plastic packaging at
the Recycling Depot. The City achieved 78 per
cent diversion from landfills for single family
residences.
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City of Richmond—Engineering and Public Works

y Extension—Gilbert Road to

A ground breaking ceremony was held for construction of the new River Parkway.

6. Quality Infrastructure Networks

Continue diligence towards the development of
infrastructure networks that are safe, sustainable,
and address the challenges associated with aging
systems, population growth, and environmental
impact.

2018 Achievement

A groundbreaking ceremony was held for the
River Parkway, a major new arterial route that will
bisect the City Centre and significantly enhance
community mobility.

7. Strong Financial Stewardship

Maintain the City’s strong financial position
through effective budget processes, the efficient
and effective use of financial resources, and the
prudent leveraging of economic and financial
opportunities to increase current and long-term
financial sustainability.

Council approved development of a new 40-unit temporary
modular housing project to serve people experiencing
homelessness.

2018 Achievement

Council’s Long Term Financial Management
Strategy has resulted in the City and its
subsidiaries accumulating $540 million in
Reserves as at December 31, 2018. This positions
the City well for the future.
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The launch of MyRichmond expanded the range of City e-services available to local residents.

i

0 o g
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Construction value of building permits in 2018 was the second
highest ever.

8. Supportive Economic
Development Environment

Review, develop and implement plans, policies,
programs and practices to increase business
and visitor appeal and promote local economic
growth and resiliency.

2018 Achievement

The construction value of building permits issued
in 2018 was $879 million, the second highest
total ever.

9. Well-Informed Citizenry

Continue to develop and provide programs and
services that ensure the Richmond community is
well-informed and engaged on City business and
decision making.

2018 Achievement

The new MyRichmond e-services portal was
launched, providing citizens with enhanced
access to select online City services.

Additional information on the success indicators
in support of these objectives can be found at:
www.richmond.ca/cityhall/council/about/goals.

CNCL-63

City of Richmond 2018 Annual Report



Community Safety Building Program

The opening of the Brighouse Fire Hall No.
1'in the fall of 2018 was a momentous
occasion for the City of Richmond.

It is the City's central fire hall serving

the rapidly growing City Centre and is
headquarters for Richmond Fire-Rescue’s
administration. It is also home to the City’s
Emergency Programs department.

Brighouse Fire Hall No. 1 officially opened in 2018 with a celebration
that included fun activities for the whole family and dedication of a
new public art statue honouring firefighters.

The completion of Brighouse Fire Hall No. 1 also
marked the conclusion of an ambitious 10-year
building program, in which the City replaced or
upgraded virtually all of its public safety buildings.
Since 2007, the City completed construction of five
new fire halls, completed a major retrofit of a sixth
fire hall, and acquired and renovated the Richmond
Community Safety Building, which serves as the home
of the City’s police detachment.

City of Richmond 2018 Annual Report
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Major milestones of the Community Safety
Building Program included the openings of i
the following buildings: — ja

2007 Hamilton Fire Hall L\ | .
2007 Sea Island Fire Hall : : i H

2011 Richmond Community 1 E
Safety Building == '8 7l B 78

2011 Steveston Fire Hall i A 4‘

2017 Cambie Fire Hall — e = = M— e —

2018 Brighouse Fire Hall

All the new buildings were built to post-
disaster standard to ensure they would
remain operable after a major seismic
event. Sustainable building design was also
incorporated into all the new facilities, with
a number achieving gold certification under
the Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design (LEED) ranking program.

v
I

o ] Since 2007, the City has also completed a new Community Safety
The Cambie Fire Hall is also home to a BC Building, which houses the police detachment (top) and five new

fire halls, including the Cambie (middle), Steveston, Sea Island and

ambulance service station, the first time ! !
Hamilton Fire Halls (bottom).

these two critical emergency response
agencies have been co-housed in an urban
centre in BC.
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2018 Awards

A measurement of the City’s success in achieving District Energy Program

its goals are the honours and recognition we . e

received from our peers and others. In 2018 Rlchmonds District Energy Program ha? been the

Richmond again received numerous international, 'subljedc't oftmore thag a d%ﬁ%avﬁrdf S|ncet201 1,

national and provincial awards recognizing our :Enc . lnPg \.Notav]y;: s\|(n A —d fe nntohva e

commitment to excellence and innovation. NErgy rroject ot the vear Award trom the - -
Association of Energy Engineers and the District
Energy Leadership Award from the International

Smart Cities Cha”enge District Energy Association.

Richmond was selected as a finalist in the

national Smart Cities Challenge. Richmond was Financial Reporting

chosen as one of 10 finalists competing for two . . L
- : The Government Finance Officers Association of
$10 million prizes. The Government of Canada the US and Canada presented Richmond with

competition challenged local governments to : . . .
envision innovative ways to engage technologies the Canadian Award for Financial Reportllng fqr
the 16th year in a row and the Popular Financial

and data that will improve the lives of residents . :
and enhance service delivery. Reporting Award for the 9th year in a row for our
2017 Annual Report.

Global Active City

Richmond was among the first six cities in the
world to be named as a Global Active City
based on work with our partners in developing
key initiatives such as our Community Wellness
Strategy and the Recreation and Sport Strategy.

Storeys affordable housing project

The City received the Planning Excellence Award
in Social Planning from the Canadian Institute of
Planners for the new Storeys affordable housing
project on Granville Avenue east of No. 3 Road.

_ =
| = b
B : A
=_— %-l = N
g Jm P

The Storeys affordable housing project recelved natlonal honors for planning excellence.
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City Centre Community Centre

The BC Recreation and Parks Association
presented Richmond with the Building Excellence
Award for the City Centre Community Centre.

Pollinator Pasture

Richmond received the BC Recreation and

Parks Association Program Excellence Award,
recognizing a creative, successful and innovative
program that serves as a model for other
recreation and parks agencies to enhance their
services. The award was for the Pollinator Pasture,
a community-engaged public art project by the
City of Richmond in partnership with Border Free

Bees.
The City received two 2018 awards from the BC Recreation GB
and Parks Association. .
M y R | C h mon d Government Finance Officers Association
Richmond was named one of the 50 Top Smart
Cities in the World in the Smart 50 competition . ‘
for the development of our new MyRichmond Canadian Award
e-services portal, part of the City’s Digital
Strategy. . ) for )
: Financial Reporting

City Fleet Program
The American Public Works Association and Presented to
Government Fleet magazine honoured Richmond ) .
with their Leading Fleets Award. City of Richmond

. . . . British Columbia
Electric Vehicle Readiness Policy
The City received the Governance Award from ) |
the Union of BC Municipalities for our innovative Forits Annua
Electric Vehicle Readiness Policy, a North B
American first. for the Year Ended

. December 31,2017
No. 2 Road Drainage
Pump Station : .
The Public Works Association of BC awarded %@Jh P Mol
Richmond the Project of the Year Award for the Executive Director/CEO
design of our new No. 2 Road Pump Station.
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Report from the General Manager,
Finance and Corporate Services

Mayor Malcom Brodie and Members of Richmond City Council,

| am pleased to submit the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2018 for the City of Richmond pursuant to Section 98 and 167 of the
Community Charter.

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and related
information in the 2018 Annual Report. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards as prescribed by the Public Sector
Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. The City maintains a
system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurances for the safeguarding of assets
and the reliability of financial information.

KPMG LLP was appointed by City Council to independently audit the City’s consolidated financial
statements. They have expressed an opinion, that the City's consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the City of Richmond as at
December 31, 2018 and its consolidated results of operations, its changes in net consolidated financial
assets and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

These financial statements combine the accounts of the City of Richmond, Richmond Olympic Oval,
and Richmond Public Library (collectively referred to as the “City”), as well as the City’s investment in
Lulu Island Energy Company which is accounted for as a Government Business Enterprise.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (in $000s)

2018 Actual 2017 Actual Change
Financial Assets $1,231,060 $1,114,486 $116,574
Financial Liabilities 467,939 416,396 51,543
Net Financial Assets 763,121 698,090 65,031
Tangible Capital Assets 2,371,694 2,251,901 119,793
Inventory 3,602 3,762 (160)
Prepaid Expenses 2,673 2,376 297
Non-Financial Assets 2,377,969 2,258,039 119,930
Accumulated Surplus $3,141,090 $2,956,129 $184,961

The City's financial position remains strong with an increase in the assets resulting from additions to
capital and statutory reserves. This is offset by liabilities that include deferred revenue related to the
collection of Development Cost Charges (DCC) as well as deposits for restricted purposes, including
performance on development projects. The City’s long-term debt with the Municipal Finance Authority
continues to decline with an outstanding balance at the end of 2018 of $32.8 million or approximately
$147 per capita.

The City’'s tangible capital assets increased by $119.8 million, which includes $88.0 million of in-kind
contributions from development. The majority of these additional assets are related to land received as
conditions of re-zoning, along with new infrastructure required to support the growing community.
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Statutory Reserves (in $000s)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Total Reserves $376,602 $461,178 $471,846 $484,883 $540,153

Statutory reserves are established by Bylaw for specific purposes, mainly capital expenditures.

The increase in the balance to $540.2 million is mainly attributable to the timing of these capital
expenditures and contributions. Each year, amounts are transferred to the reserves through Council’s
Long Term Financial Management Strategy towards infrastructure construction and renewal along with
cash contributions from developers as conditions of development.

Overall, the City's accumulated surplus increased to $3.1 billion as at December 31, 2018. Accumulated
surplus represents the net resources that can be used to provide future services.

Consolidated Statement of Operations (in $000s)
2018 Budget 2018 Actual 2017 Actual

Revenue $521,494 $599,417 $523,167
Expenses 439,367 414,456 413,284
Annual Surplus $82,127 $184,961 $109,883

The City's consolidated revenue for the year totaled $599.4 million and represents an increase of $76.3
million over 2017. Continuing growth in the community has resulted in the additional development-
related revenue and contributions.

Expenses increased by $1.2 million from prior year. 2017 expenses include an extraordinary contribution
towards the Storeys affordable housing initiative.

The annual surplus for 2018 was $185.0 million and represents the change in investment in tangible
capital assets, reserves and other accumulated surplus.

Budget Variance

Consolidated revenue of $599.4M was greater than budgeted revenue by $77.9M mainly due to:
e $37.2M higher than budgeted capital funding, mainly due to developer contributed assets;
e $33.7M in developer cash contributions included under other revenue;

e $14.2M lower than budgeted DCC revenue due to the timing of capital expenditures. Revenue is
recognized when the amounts are spent while the budget represents the 2018 allocation of DCC's
towards capital projects that can be spent over multiple years;

e $7.1M higher than budget for payments-in-lieu of taxes, taxation and levies and other revenues;

¢ $6.0M higher than budgeted investment income due to increases in the interest rate during the year
and timing of capital expenditures;

¢ $3.3M higher than budgeted permit revenue, underpinning fees and business licence revenue;

e $2.7M of grant revenue recognized was greater than budgeted for the expansion of the Major Road
Network and traffic grants; and,

e $2.1M higher than budget for utility fees mainly due to construction related flat rate utility
prepayments and fire hydrant usage revenue.
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Consolidated expenses of $414.5M were lower than budget by $25.0M. The main variances include:
¢ $9.2M lower than budgeted general government costs due to vacancies and timing of programs;

e $7.3M lower than budgeted engineering and public works costs due to timing of programs
scheduled to be completed in 2019;

¢ $3.3M favourable budget variance for community safety due to RCMP policing contract and salary
vacancies;

¢ $2.9M lower than budgeted costs in other various services; and,

e $2.3M lower than budgeted community service costs as a result of the delay in the opening of the
Minoru Centre for Active Living.

The City's consolidated annual surplus of $185.0 million exceeded the budgeted annual surplus of
$82.1 million by $102.9 million prior to transfers to reserves and other accumulated surplus. The
annual surplus exceeded budget primarily due to developer cash contributions of $33.7 million and
$88.0 million of in-kind asset contributions.

Year over year change
Consolidated revenue of $599.4M increased by $76.3M over 2017 mainly due to:

e an increase of $38.3M in capital funding due to the timing of developer contributed assets which
includes a $33.5M increase in donated assets by developers relating to land;

e anincrease of $17.2M in other revenue mainly from developer amenity contributions;

e an increase of $10.0M in property taxes due to the approved rate increase and growth related to
new development;

e anincrease of $3.4M in utility fees, including water and sewer rate and volume increases;

e an increase of $2.9M of investment income from the higher average investment balance and
improved yield; and,

* remaining net increase of $4.5M on grants, development cost charges, and other revenue.

Consolidated expenses of $414.5M increased by $1.2M over 2017 mainly due to:

e a decrease of $17.0M in contributions towards the Storeys Development project that was paid in
2017 and did not recur in 2018;

e an increase of $8.6M from increased policing costs and contract costs for E-Comm 911;
e an increase of $2.8M in contractual wage and other fringe costs; and,
e remaining net increase of $6.8M in other expenses.

Financial Sustainability

City Council adopted the Long Term Financial Management Strategy to ensure prudent fiscal practices
while maintaining the City’s high service standards and balancing current and long term financial
needs. The effects of this policy can be seen in the current financial health of the organization.

The City's financial management has positioned it well to continue to carry out and meet Council goals
and service commitments to provide a safe and desirable community to live, work and play in, while
providing value for taxpayers.

Respectfully submitted,

A,._v,-——-«-«»—-

Andrew Nazareth, BEc, CPA, CGA
General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services
May 13, 2019
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

City of Richmond audited financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2018
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

KPMG LLP

PO Box 10426 777 Dunsmuir Street
Vancouver BC V7Y 1K3

Canada

Telephone (604) 691-3000

Fax (604) 691-3031

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Mayor and Council of the City of Richmond

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the City of Richmond (the “City”),
which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018

e the consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended

e the consolidated statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then ended

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

¢ and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies

(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the City as at December 31, 2018, and its consolidated
results of operations, its consolidated changes in net financial assets and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
auditors’ report.

We are independent of the City in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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City of Richmond
Page 2

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the City’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the City or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the City’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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KPMG

City of Richmond
Page 3

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the City’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the City to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group entity to express an opinion on the
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

L s 4
e L

Chartered Professional Accountants

Vancouver, Canada
May 13, 2019

CNCL-74

City of Richmond 2018 Annual Report

20



CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017

City of Richmond audited financial statements

2018 2017
Financial Assets
Cash $ 121,861 $ 47,867
Investments (note 3) 1,004,928 972,783
Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company (“LIEC”) (note 4) 29,780 28,289
Accrued interest receivable 7,443 6,651
Accounts receivable (note 5) 29,151 27,036
Taxes receivable 11,844 8,976
Development fees receivable 25,545 22,376
Debt reserve fund - deposits (note 6) 508 508
1,231,060 1,114,486
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 7) 95,231 99,036
Development cost charges (note 8) 158,882 130,684
Deposits and holdbacks (note 9) 113,620 82,786
Deferred revenue (note 10) 67,364 66,287
Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits (note 11) 32,842 37,603
467,939 416,396
Net financial assets 763,121 698,090
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (note 12) 2,371,694 2,251,901
Inventory of materials and supplies 3,602 3,762
Prepaid expenses 2,673 2,376
2,377,969 2,258,039
Accumulated surplus (note 13) $ 3,141,090 $ 2,956,129

Contingent demand notes (note 6)
Commitments and contingencies (note 18)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

A,q,_-w

General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Operations
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017

2018
Budget 2018 2017
(notes 2(p)
and 24)
Revenue:
Taxation and levies $ 216,703 $ 216,908 $ 206,901
Utility fees 100,786 102,915 99,493
Sales of services 39,246 39,111 39,430
Payments-in-lieu of taxes 14,245 15,489 14,647
Provincial and federal grants 7,692 10,355 9,276
Development cost charges (note 8) 31,638 17,432 15,710
Other capital funding sources 58,685 95,859 57,570
Other revenue:
Investment income 14,694 20,705 17,832
Gaming revenue 16,500 16,837 16,753
Licenses and permits 10,384 13,637 13,011
Other (note 21) 10,921 48,678 31,502
Equity income in government business
enterprise (“‘GBE”) (note 4) - 1,491 1,042
521,494 599,417 523,167
Expenses:
Community safety 101,786 98,500 89,933
Utilities: water, sewer and sanitation 90,460 89,959 87,757
Engineering, public works and project
development 76,077 68,793 66,120
Community services 66,159 63,882 77,387
General government 61,796 52,549 51,720
Planning and development 16,120 15,368 15,417
Richmond Olympic Oval 16,211 15,424 15,331
Library services 10,758 9,981 9,619
439,367 414,456 413,284
Annual surplus 82,127 184,961 109,883
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 2,956,129 2,956,129 2,846,246
Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 3,038,256 $ 3,141,090 $ 2,956,129

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017

2018
Budget 2018 2017
(notes 2(p)
and 24)
Annual surplus for the year $ 82,127 $ 184,961 $ 109,883
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (162,318) (92,851) (110,742)
Contributed tangible capital assets (47,410) (88,021) (52,249)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 58,717 60,542 58,012
Net loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets - 324 (3,293)
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets - 213 5,361
Reclassification of assets to LIEC as GBE - - 31,036
Classification of LIEC as GBE - - (2,182)
(68,884) 65,168 35,826
Acquisition of inventories of materials and supplies - (3,602) (3,762)
Acquisition of prepaid expenses - (2,673) (2,376)
Consumption of inventories of materials
and supplies - 3,762 3,138
Use of prepaid expenses - 2,376 2,525
Change in net financial assets (68,884) 65,031 35,351
Net financial assets, beginning of year 698,090 698,090 662,739
Net financial assets, end of year $ 629,206 $ 763,121 $ 698,090

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017

2018 2017
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Annual surplus $ 184,961 $ 109,883
ltems not involving cash:
Amortization 60,542 58,012
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets 324 (3,293)
Contributions of tangible capital assets (88,021) (52,249)
Accounting adjustments upon transition of LIEC to a GBE - 5,846
Equity income in GBE (1,491) (1,042)
Change in non-cash operating working capital:
Accrued interest receivable (792) 321
Accounts receivable (2,115) 730
Taxes receivable (2,868) 446
Development fees receivable (3,169) (5,664)
Inventories of materials and supplies 160 (624)
Prepaid expenses (297) 149
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,805) 2,316
Development cost charges 28,198 13,087
Deposits and holdbacks 30,834 9,990
Deferred revenue 1,077 (33)
Net change in cash from operating activities 203,538 137,875
Capital activities:
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (92,851) (110,742)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 213 5,361
Net change in cash from capital activities (92,638) (105,381)
Financing activities:
Repayments of debt (4,761) (4,578)
Investing activities:
Net sale (purchase) of investments (32,145) 5,855
Contribution to LIEC - (4,239)
Net change in cash from investing activities (32,145) 1,616
Net change in cash 73,994 29,532
Cash, beginning of year 47,867 18,335
Cash, end of year $ 121,861 $ 47,867

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

1. Operations:

The City of Richmond (the “City”) is incorporated under the Local Government Act of British
Columbia. The City’s principal activities include the provision of local government services to
residents of the incorporated area. These include administrative, protective, transportation,
infrastructure, environmental, recreational, water, sewer, and drainage.

2. Significant accounting policies:

The consolidated financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting
Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants Canada.

(a) Basis of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements reflect a combination of the City’s General Revenue,
General Capital and Loan, Waterworks and Sewerworks, and Reserve Funds consolidated
with the Richmond Public Library (the “Library”) and the Richmond Olympic Oval (the “Oval”).
The Library is consolidated as the Library Board is appointed by the City. The Oval is
consolidated as they are a wholly owned municipal corporation of the City. Interfund
transactions, fund balances and activities have been eliminated on consolidation. The City’s
investment in Lulu Island Energy Company (“LIEC”), a wholly owned government business
enterprise (“GBE”), is accounted for using the modified equity method effective January 1,
2017 (note 2(f)).

(/) General Revenue Fund:

This fund is used to account for the current operations of the City as provided for in the
Annual Budget, including collection of taxes, administering operations, policing, and
servicing general debt.

(i) General Capital and Loan Fund:

This fund is used to record the City's tangible capital assets and work-in-progress,
including engineering structures such as roads and bridges, and the related debt.

(iii) Waterworks and Sewerworks Funds:

These funds have been established to cover the costs of operating these utilities, with
related capital and loan funds to record the related tangible capital assets and debt.

(iv) Reserve Funds:

Certain funds are established by bylaws for specific purposes. They are funded primarily
by budgeted contributions from the General Revenue Fund and developer contributions
plus interest earned on fund balances.
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(b)

(c)

Basis of accounting:

The City follows the accrual method of accounting for revenue and expenses. Revenue is
recognized in the year in which it is earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized as
they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods and services and/or the
creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Government transfers:

Restricted transfers from governments are deferred and recognized as revenue as the
related expenditures are incurred or the stipulations in the related agreement are met.
Unrestricted transfers are recognized as revenue when received or if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, highly liquid money market investments and
short-term investments with maturities of less than 90 days from date of acquisition.

Investments:

Investments are recorded at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums or discounts.
Provisions for losses are recorded when they are considered to be other than temporary.

Investment in government business enterprises:

Government business enterprises are recorded using the modified equity method of
accounting. The City’s investment in the GBE is recorded as the value of the GBE’s
shareholder’s equity. The investment’s income or loss is recognized by the City when it is
earned by the GBE. Inter-organizational transactions and balances are not eliminated, except
for any gains or losses on assets remaining within the City.

Accounts receivable:

Accounts receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts and therefore represent
amounts expected to be collected.

Development cost charges:

Development cost charges are restricted by legislation to expenditures on capital
infrastructure. These amounts are deferred upon receipt and recognized as revenue when
the expenditures are incurred in accordance with the restrictions.
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(i) Post-employment benefits:

The City and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. As this plan is
a multi-employee plan, contributions are expensed as incurred.

Post-employment benefits also accrue to the City’s employees. The liabilities related to these
benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of retirement ages
and expected future salary and wage increases. The liabilities under these benefits plans are
accrued based on projected benefits prorated as employees render services necessary to
earn the future benefits.

(j) Non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

(i) Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development, or betterment of the assets. The
cost, less the residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized
on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful life - years
Buildings and building improvements 10-75
Infrastructure 5-100
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 3-40
Library’s collections, furniture and equipment 4-20

Amortization is charged over the asset’s useful life commencing when the asset is
acquired. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for
productive use.

(i) Contributions of tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.

(iii) Natural resources, works of art, and cultural and historic assets:

Natural resources, works of art, and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as
assets in the consolidated financial statements.
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

)

(k)

U

Non-financial assets (continued):
(iv) Interest capitalization:

The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the construction of a tangible
capital asset.

(v) Labour capitalization:

Internal labour directly attributable to the construction, development or implementation of
a tangible capital asset is capitalized.

(vi) Leased tangible capital assets:

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership
of property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses
as incurred.

(vii) Impairment of tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer
contribute to the City’s ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future
economic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are less than their net
book value. The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the consolidated
statement of operations.

(viii) Inventory of materials and supplies:

Inventory is recorded at cost, net of an allowance for obsolete stock. Cost is determined
on a weighted average basis.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave
rise to the revenue. All revenue is recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals
cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is
impractical.

The City is required to act as the agent for the collection of certain taxes and fees imposed by
other authorities. Collections for other authorities are excluded from the City’s taxation
revenue.

Property taxes:

The City establishes property tax rates based on assessed market values provided by the
British Columbia Assessment Authority (BCA). Market values are determined as of July 15t of
each year. The City records taxation revenue at the time the property tax bills are issued. The
City is entitled to collect interest and penalties on overdue taxes.
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City of Richmond audited financial statements

CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(m) Deferred revenue:

The City defers a portion of the revenue collected from permits, licenses and other fees and
recognizes this revenue in the year in which related inspections are performed, other related
expenses are incurred or services are provided.

Deferred revenue also represents funds received from external parties for specified
purposes. This revenue is recognized in the period in which the related expenses are
incurred.

(n) Deposits:

Receipts restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external
parties are deferred and reported as deposits and are refundable under certain
circumstances. When qualifying expenses are incurred, deposits are recognized as revenue
at amounts equal to the qualifying expenses.

(o) Debt:
Debt is recorded net of related sinking fund balances.
(p) Budget information:

Budget information, presented on a basis consistent with that used for actual results, was
included in the City's 5 Year Consolidated Financial Plan (2018-2022) (“Consolidated
Financial Plan”) and was adopted through Bylaw No. 9800 on March 12, 2018.

(q) Contaminated sites:

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water, or
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material of live organism that exceeds an
environmental standard. Liabilities are recorded net of any expected recoveries.

A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive
use and the following criteria are met:

() An environmental standard exists;

(i) Contamination exceeds the environmental standard;

(iii) The City is directly responsible or accepts responsibility;

(iv) Itis expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and
(v) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including
operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy
for a contaminated site.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(r)

(s)

Use of accounting estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the value of
contributed tangible capital assets, value of developer contributions, useful lives for
amortization, determination of provisions for accrued liabilities, performing actuarial valuation
of employee future benefits, allowance for doubtful accounts, and provision for contingencies.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the
consolidated financial statements in the period that the change in estimate is made, as well
as in the period of settlement if the amount is different.

Segment disclosures:

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for
which it is appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of
the standard. The City has provided definitions of segments as well as presented financial
information in segment format.

3. Investments:

2018 2017

Market Market
Cost value Cost value
Short-term notes and deposits $ 577,416 $ 577,060 $ 499,541 $ 488,215

Government and government
guaranteed bonds 164,943 165,401 177,648 178,246

Municipal Finance Authority
pooled investment 46,150 44716 45,065 43,943
Other bonds 216,419 213,577 250,529 249,120
$ 1,004,928 $ 1,000,754 $ 972,783 $ 959,524
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

4. Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd:

The City owns 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of LIEC, which was incorporated
under the British Columbia Business Corporation Act on August 19, 2013. LIEC develops,
manages and operates district energy utilities in the City, on the City’s behalf, including but not
limited to energy production, generation or exchange, transmission, distribution, maintenance,
marketing and sales to customers, customer service, profit generation, financial management and
advisory services for energy and infrastructure.

Summarized financial information relating to LIEC is as follows:

2018 2017
Cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 8,596 $ 6,227
Accounts receivable 2,242 1,488
Tangible capital assets 32,361 32,033
Total assets 43,199 39,748
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,922 1,550
Deferred contributions 5,268 3,522
Concession liability 6,229 6,387
Total liabilities 13,419 11,459
Shareholder’s equity $ 29,780 $ 28,289
Total revenue $ 4,888 $ 4,224
Total expenses 3,397 3,182
Net income $ 1,491 $ 1,042

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the City’s consolidated statement of
financial position are payables to LIEC in the amount of $1,375,799 (2017 - $360,766).

On October 30, 2014, LIEC and the Oval Village district energy utility developer (“the
Concessionaire”) entered into a 30-year Concession Agreement, which is a public-private
partnership project (“P3”), where the Concessionaire will design, construct, finance, operate, and
maintain the infrastructure for the district energy utility at the Oval Village community. As part of
the Agreement, the infrastructure will be owned by LIEC.

On October 30, 2014, the Concessionaire and the City entered into a Limited Guarantee
Agreement. The City is the Guarantor and guarantees the performance of some of the
Company’s obligations under the Concession Agreement to a maximum of $18.2 million (2017 -
$18.2 million).
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

5. Accounts receivable:

2018 2017

Water and sewer utilities $ 11,999 $ 12,661
Casino revenue 4,010 4,025
Capital grants 5,003 2,929
Other trade receivables 8,139 7,421
$ 29,151 $ 27,036

6. Debt reserve fund deposits and contingent demand notes:

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority (the “MFA”). As a
condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is withheld by the MFA in a
Debt Reserve Fund. The City also executes demand notes in connection with each debenture
whereby the City may be required to loan certain amounts to the MFA. These demand notes are
contingent in nature and are not reflected in the City’s accounts. The details of the cash deposits
and contingent demand notes at December 31, 2017 and 2018 are as follows:

Contingent
Cash demand
deposits notes
General Revenue Fund $ 508 $ 2447
7. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
2018 2017
Trade and other liabilities $ 64,917 $ 68,618
Post-employment benefits (note 15) 30,314 30,418
$ 95,231 $ 99,036
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

City of Richmond audited financial statements

8. Development cost charges:

2018 2017

Balance, beginning of year $ 130,684 $ 117,597
Contributions 42,792 26,866
Interest 2,838 1,931
Revenue recognized (17,432) (15,710)
Balance, end of year $ 158,882 $ 130,684

9. Deposits and holdbacks:

Balance Balance

December 31, Deposit Refund/ December 31,

2017  contributions  expenditures 2018

Security deposits $ 58,083 $ 63,785 $ (32,311) $ 89,557
Developer contributions 6,953 360 - 7,313
Contract holdbacks 7,830 2,748 (3,928) 6,650
Other 9,920 8,814 (8,634) 10,100
$ 82,786 $ 75,707 $ (44,873) $ 113,620

10. Deferred revenue:

Balance External Revenue Balance

December 31, restricted earned/ December 31,

2017 inflows  adjustments 2018

Taxes and utilities 19,613 $ 20,450 $ (19,613) $ 20,450
Building permits/development 13,726 7,545 (5,673) 15,598
Oval 6,515 10,304 (10,500) 6,319
Capital grants 20,278 7,240 (7,960) 19,558
Business licenses 2,510 2,136 (2,123) 2,523
Parking easement/leased land 2,423 54 (47) 2,430
Other 1,222 6,833 (7,569) 486
66,287 $ 54,562 $ (53,485) $ 67,364
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

11. Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits:

The interest rate for the year ended December 31, 2018 on the principal amount of the MFA
debentures was 3.30% (2017 - 3.30%) per annum. Interest expense incurred for the year on the
long-term debt was $1,676,895 (2017 - $1,676,895). The maturity date of the MFA debt is April 7,
2024.

The City obtains debt instruments through the MFA pursuant to security issuing bylaws under
authority of the Community Charter to finance certain capital expenditures.

Gross amount for the debt less principal payments and actuarial adjustments to date are as

follows:
Gross Repayments
amount and actuarial Net debt Net debt
borrowed adjustments 2018 2017
General Fund $ 50815 $ 17,973 $ 32,842 $ 37,603

Repayments on net outstanding debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2019 $ 4,951
2020 5,149
2021 5,355
2022 5,570
2023 5,792
Thereafter 6,025

$ 32,842
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2018

City of Richmond audited financial statements

12. Tangible capital assets:

Balance Additions Balance

December 31, and December 31,

Cost 2017 transfers Disposals 2018

Land $ 905,118 $ 78,883 $ - $ 984,001
Building and building

improvements 416,029 26,210 (58) 442,181

Infrastructure 1,697,075 47,729 (3,124) 1,741,680

Vehicles, machinery and

equipment 130,776 16,434 (4,417) 142,793
Library’s collections,

furniture and equipment 9,047 1,072 (674) 9,445

Assets under construction 140,752 10,544 - 151,296

$ 3,298,797 $ 180,872 $ (8,273) $ 3,471,396

Balance Balance

December 31, Amortization December 31,

Accumulated amortization 2017 Disposals expense 2018
Building and building

improvements $ 170,579 $ (52) $ 15,752 $ 186,279

Infrastructure 789,365 (2,865) 33,887 820,387

Vehicles, machinery and

equipment 81,260 (4,148) 9,714 86,826
Library’s collections,

furniture and equipment 5,692 (671) 1,189 6,210

$ 1,046,896 $ (7,